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Entry	1	School	Information	and	Cover	Page	
(New	schools	that	were	not	open	for	instruction	for
the	2018-19	school	year	are	not	required	to	complete
or	submit	an	annual	report	this	year).
Created:	07/24/2019	•	Last	updated:	07/26/2019

a.	SCHOOL	NAME

(Select	name	from	the	drop	down	menu)

CONEY	ISLAND	PREPARATORY	PUBLIC	CHARTER	SCHOOL

a1.	Popular	School	Name
(Optional)

(No	response)

b.	CHARTER	AUTHORIZER	(As	of
June	30th,	2019)

Please	select	the	correct	authorizer	as	of
June	30,	2019	or	you	may	not	be
assigned	the	correct	tasks.

SUNY Authorized	Charter	School

c.	DISTRICT	/	CSD	OF	LOCATION NYC	CSD	21

d.	DATE	OF	INITIAL	CHARTER 12/2009

e.	DATE	FIRST	OPENED	FOR
INSTRUCTION

08/2009

h.	SCHOOL	WEB	ADDRESS	(URL) www.coneyislandprep.org

Please	be	advised	that	you	will	need	to	complete	this	cover	page	(including	signatures)	before	all	of	the
other	tasks	assigned	to	you	by	your	authorizer	are	visible	on	your	task	page.	While	completing	this	cover
page	task,	please	ensure	that	you	select	the	correct	authorizer	(as	of	June	30,	2019)	or	you	may	not	be
assigned	the	correct	tasks.

BASIC	INFORMATION
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i.	TOTAL	MAX	APPROVED
ENROLLMENT	FOR	THE	2018-19
SCHOOL	YEAR	(exclude	Pre-K
program	enrollment)

1032

j.	TOTAL	STUDENT	ENROLLMENT
ON	JUNE	30,	2019	(exclude	Pre-K
program	enrollment)

987

l1.	DOES	THE	SCHOOL	CONTRACT
WITH	A	CHARTER	OR
EDUCATIONAL	MANAGEMENT
ORGANIZATION?

	

No

k.	GRADES	SERVED	IN	SCHOOL	YEAR	2018-19	(does	not	include	Pre-K	program
students)
Check	all	that	apply

Grades	Served K,	1,	2,	3,	4,	5,	6,	7,	8,	9,	10,	11,	12

FACILITIES	INFORMATION

m.	FACILITIES
Does	the	school	maintain	or	operate	multiple	sites?

Yes,	3	sites

School	Site	1	(Primary)
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m1b.	Is	site	1	in	public	(co-
located)	space	or	in	private
space?

Co located	Space

m1.	SCHOOL	SITES
Please	provide	the	following	information	for	site	1.

Physical	Address Phone	Number District/CSD Grades	Served
at	Site	(K 5,	6 9,
etc.)

Receives	Rental
Assistance	for
Which	Grades	(If
yes,	enter	the
appropriate
grades.	If	no,
enter	No).

Site	1
8787	24th
Avenue
Brooklyn,	NY
11214

718 676 4755 NYC	CSD	21 K 4 No

m1a.	Please	provide	the	contact	information	for	Site	1.

Name Work	Phone Alternate	Phone Email	Address

School
Leader Juliana	Bryansmith

Operati
onal
Leader

Karen	Johnson

Complia
nce
Contact

Rachel	Kreutzer

Complai
nt
Contact

Rachel	Kreutzer

DASA
Coordin
ator

Rachel	Kreutzer

Phone
Contact
for	After
Hours
Emerge
ncies

Ashley	Weech
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m1c.	Please	list	the	terms	of	your	current	co-location.

Date	school
will	leave
current	co
location

Is	school
working	with
NYCDOE	to
expand	into
current
space?

If	so,	list	year
expansion
will	occur.

Is	school
working	with
NYCDOE	to
move	to
separate
space?

If	so,	list	the
proposed
space	and
year	planned
for	move

School	at	Full
Capacity	at
Site

Site	1 N/A No No Yes

IF	LOCATED	IN	PRIVATE	SPACE	IN	NYC	OR	IN	DISTRICTS	OUTSIDE	NYC

m1d.	Upload	a	current	Certificate	of	Occupancy	(COO)	and	the	annual	Fire	Inspection
Report	for	school	site	1	if	located	in	private	space	in	NYC	or	located	outside	of	NYC	.

Site	1	Certificate	of	Occupancy	(COO)

(No	response)

Site	1	Fire	Inspection	Report

(No	response)

School	Site	2

m2.	SCHOOL	SITES
Please	provide	the	following	information	for	site	2.

Physical	Address Phone	Number District/CSD Grades	Served
at	Site	(K 5,	6 9,
etc.)

Receives	Rental
Assistance	for
Which	Grades	(If
yes,	enter	the
appropriate
grades.	If	no,
enter	No).

Site	2
501	West
Avenue
Brooklyn,	NY
11224

718 513 6951 NYC	CSD	21 5 8 No
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m2b.	Is	site	2	in	public	(co-
located)	space	or	in	private
space?

Co located	Space

m2a.	Please	provide	the	contact	information	for	Site	2.

Name Work	Phone Alternate	Phone Email	Address

School
Leader Amanda	Stroud

Operati
onal
Leader

Melissa	Wasley

Complia
nce
Contact

Rachel	Kreutzer

Complai
nt
Contact

Rachel	Kreutzer

DASA
Coordin
ator

Rachel	Kreutzer

Phone
Contact
for	After
Hours
Emerge
ncies

Ashley	Weech

m2c.	Please	list	the	terms	of	your	current	co-location.

Date	school
will	leave
current	co
location

Is	school
working	with
NYCDOE	to
expand	into
current
space?

If	so,	list	year
expansion
will	occur.

Is	school
working	with
NYCDOE	to
move	to
separate
space?

If	so,	list	the
proposed
space	and
year	planned
for	move

School	at	Full
Capacity	at
Site

Site	2 N/A No No Yes

School	Site	3
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m3b.	Is	site	3	in	public	(co-
located)	space	or	in	private
space?

Private	Space

m3.	SCHOOL	SITES
Please	provide	the	following	information	for	site	3.

Physical	Address Phone	Number District/CSD Grades	Served
at	Site	(K 5,	6 9,
etc.)

Receives	Rental
Assistance	for
Which	Grades	(If
yes,	enter	the
appropriate
grades.	If	no,
enter	No).

Site	3
294	Avenue	T
Brooklyn,	NY
11223

718 676 1063 NYC	CSD	21 9 12 Yes,	10 12

m3a.	Please	provide	the	contact	information	for	Site	3.

Name Work	Phone Alternate	Phone Email	Address

School
Leader Kate	Baxter

Operati
onal
Leader

Patricia	Sanchez

Complia
nce
Contact

Rachel	Kreutzer

Complai
nt
Contact

Rachel	Kreutzer

DASA
Coordin
ator

Rachel	Kreutzer

Phone
Contact
for	After
Hours
Emerge
ncies

Ashley	Weech
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n1.	Were	there	any	revisions	to
the	school’s	charter	during	the
2018-19	school	year?	(Please
include	approved	or	pending
material	and	non-material
charter	revisions).

Yes

IF	LOCATED	IN	PRIVATE	SPACE	IN	NYC	OR	IN	DISTRICTS	OUTSIDE	NYC

m3d.	Upload	a	current	Certificate	of	Occupancy	(COO)	and	the	annual	Fire	Inspection
Report	for	school	site	3	if	located	in	private	space	in	NYC	or	located	outside	of	NYC	.

Site	3	Certificate	of	Occupancy	(COO)

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/110024928/grgnexJqqo/

Site	3	Fire	Inspection	Report

(No	response)

CHARTER	REVISIONS	DURING	THE	2018-19	SCHOOL	YEAR

n2.	Summary	of	Charter	Revisions

Category	(Select	Best
Description)

Specific	Revision
(150	word	limit)

Date	Approved	by
BOT	(if	applicable)

Date	Approved	by
Authorizer	(if
applicable)

1
Change	in
admissions/enrollme
nt	policy

Coney	Island	Prep	is
currently	authorized
to	serve	1,032
students	in	grades	K
	12.	We	request	an

increase	in	our
authorized
enrollment	to	1,680.
Expanded	enrollment
would	begin	in	the
2020 2021	school
year	with	additional
students	in	grades	K,
1,	6,	and	9.	The
expansion	would	be
completed	and
Coney	Island	Prep
would	reach	full
enrollment	in	2026

12/18/2018
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More	revisions	to	add? No

2027.

2
Change	in
admissions/enrollme
nt	policy

Third	preference	will
be	given	to	students
who	were	previously
enrolled	in	Coney
Island	Prep	and
withdrew	from	Coney
Island	Prep	while	in
good	standing.	This
excludes,	but	is	not
limited	to,	any
student	that
withdrew	from	Coney
Island	Prep	due	to
expulsion	or	long
term	suspension,
following	a	long term
suspension	or
expulsion	hearing,	or
upon	notice	of	a
long term	suspension
or	expulsion	hearing.

3

4

5

ATTESTATION

o.	Individual	Primarily	Responsible	for	Submitting	the	Annual	Report.

Name Leslie Bernard	Joseph

Position Executive	Director

Phone/Extension

Email
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Date 2019/07/24

p.	Our	signatures	(Executive	Director/School	Leader/Head	of	School	and	Board
President)	below	attest	that	all	of	the	information	contained	herein	is	truthful	and
accurate	and	that	this	charter	school	is	in	compliance	with	all	aspects	of	its	charter,
and	with	all	pertinent	Federal,	State,	and	local	laws,	regulations,	and	rules.	We
understand	that	if	any	information	in	any	part	of	this	report	is	found	to	have	been
deliberately	misrepresented,	that	will	constitute	grounds	for	the	revocation	of	our
charter.	Check	YES	if	you	agree	and	then	use	the	mouse	on	your	PC	or	the	stylist	on
your	mobile	device	to	sign	your	name).

Yes

Signature,	Head	of	Charter	School

Signature,	President	of	the	Board	of	Trustees

Thank	you.
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Entry	2	NYS	School	Report	Card	Link
Last	updated:	07/24/2019

1.	CHARTER	AUTHORIZER	(As	of
June	30th,	2019)

(For	technical	reasons,	please	re select
authorizer	name	from	the	drop	down
menu).

SUNY Authorized	Charter	School

2.	NEW	YORK	STATE	REPORT
CARD

Provide	a	direct	URL	or	web	link
to	the	most	recent	New	York
State	School	Report	Card	for	the
charter	school	(See
https://reportcards.nysed.gov/).

(Charter	schools	completing	year
one	will	not	yet	have	a	School
Report	Card	or	link	to	one.	Please
type	"URL	is	not	available"	in	the
space	provided.)

https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php?
year=2018&instid=800000063971

CONEY	ISLAND	PREPARATORY	PUBLIC	CHARTER	SCHOOL
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Leslie-Bernard Joseph, Chief Executive Officer, Eric Green, Chief Academic Officer, and Amanda 
Warco, Director of Data, prepared this 2018-19 Accountability Progress Report on behalf of the 
school’s board of trustees: 

 

Trustee’s Name Board Position 
Josh Wolfe Chair  

Anu Malipati Secretary  
Jennifer McArdle Board Member  

Joseph Talia Board Member  
Joe Herrera Board Member  

Shona Pinnock Board Member  
Julie Goran Board Member  

Nkonye Okoh Treasurer 
Sam Tweedy Board Member  

 

Leslie-Bernard Joseph has served as the Chief Executive Officer since July 2019.  
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Coney Island Prep opened in the Coney Island neighborhood of Community School District 21 in 
August 2009 with 90 fifth grade scholars.  The initial plan was to grow up from there, adding a 
grade every year.  In this way, we opened our high school in 2013 - 2014.  That same year, 
however, we decided to grow down as well, and in 2014 – 2015, we opened an elementary 
school, starting with kindergarten and first grade. Our initial cohort of scholars graduated from 
high school in 2017. The 2017 – 2018 school year marked the first year we were a fully-grown, K 
– 12 school and the 2018 - 2019 school year is the first year that we have students in our 
middle school that started at our elementary school. Now residing in three buildings across 
southern Brooklyn, we serve over 1,000 students in grades K-12. Beginning in 2020, we plan to 
grow our schools to serve 1,650 scholars across four campuses, including lower and upper 
elementary schools, a middle school, and a newly renovated high school building near our 
current facilities. 
 
This mission of Coney Island Prep is to prepare students to succeed in the college and career of 
their choice, and we can confidently say that, while there is much hard work to be done to 
ultimately fulfill that lofty mission, we are on track.  We drastically outperform comparable 
schools on both New York State ELA and math assessments.  We outperform the city and state 
on many New York State Regents exams, and our scholars have an average SAT score above 
that of the city, state and country.  Over 95% of our first three classes have graduated from high 
school, and 100% were accepted into college.  In fact, our graduating seniors have, on average, 
earned almost 7 college acceptances each, and earned over $5,000,000 in scholarships and 
grants.   
 
Coney Island Prep is in an incredibly diverse part of the city, and that diversity is reflected in our 
student body.  Approximately 43% of our students identify as Black, 29% identify as Hispanic, 
17% identify as white, and 10% identify as Asian.  24% of our students are classified as Special 
Education students, and over 85% of our students qualify for free- or reduced-price lunch. 
 
Below, we detail 8 key design elements, as well as our general instructional philosophy and 
approach. 
 
High Expectations for Academics and Behavior 
We believe that all students can learn and achieve at high levels and behave well. At Coney Island 
Prep, student expectations are at the core of our educational philosophy.  All graduates will earn 
the opportunity to attend selective colleges and universities, and go on to be successful in the 
career of their choice. 
 
Gradual Release of Structures 
We believe that in order for Coney Island Prep to be a learning environment where every moment 
of classroom time is maximized, the school needs to be structured and systematized.  We also 
recognize that as students get older and mature, they need to be afforded increasing 
independence, and be given more room to make their own decisions.  We believe that there is 
no silver bullet for helping students reach a place where they are able to excel independently as 
is required in many high schools and all colleges.  We do believe, however, in being intentional 
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about what systems and structures are in place in different grades and scaffolding those 
appropriately, releasing more structure and building in more responsibility for decisions and 
independence so that as students graduate from one grade to the next, they will be better 
equipped to make good choices on their own.  How we structure these systems and the gradual 
release of those systems were an ongoing discussion throughout startup, and have continued to 
be refined as the school grew and added a grade each year. 
 
Great Teachers and Meaningful, Strategic Professional Development 
High quality teachers are the most important determinant of academic achievement.  Without 
strong teachers delivering exceptional lessons, students cannot make significant academic gains, 
regardless of how disciplined the learning environment is. 
 
We invest significantly in recruiting and hiring exceptional teachers.  We also invest heavily in 
internal professional development so all teachers increase their effectiveness over time.  
Professional development at Coney Island Prep begins with a three-week summer orientation.  
In addition, during the year, all teachers have a coach, who observes them teach at least weekly, 
provides intensive support including Real Time Coaching, and meets with them separately to 
discuss things that are going well, and identify and agree upon areas for improvement and 
concrete action steps.  In addition, all teachers have three hours of weekly in-house professional 
development.  We also provide dedicated professional development days during the year. 
 
K – 12, College Preparatory Curriculum 
A seamless elementary, middle, and high school education affords the opportunity to craft a 
strategic curriculum, while creating a strong and lasting sense of community.  A seamless K-12 
education fully supports our college preparatory mission because it provides continuity to 
curriculum as students move from one grade to the next.  The five elementary school years serve 
as a foundation for the four middle school years at Coney Island Prep, which continue to build a 
strong sense of college purpose among students, while strengthening foundational skills and 
developing the work habits and personal characteristics that lead to school success.  By 
continuing seamlessly into high school, students do not need to adjust to a new environment 
with different expectations.  The high school differs in some ways to meet the varied academic 
and developmental needs of maturing students, but the mission and core beliefs of the school 
remain constant.  This minimizes any adjustment period and allows students to focus on 
preparation for and acceptance into a competitive college or university. 
 
Assessments and Data to Drive Instruction and Inform Professional Development 
We believe in scaffolding instruction to ensure students have the skills and knowledge necessary 
for school success.  To monitor student progress, we use assessments throughout the year to 
gather frequent data points regarding students’ academic levels.  Teachers discern which 
standards need to be re-taught to the entire class, and which students need individual 
remediation and tutoring on particular skills and concepts.  Assessment data guides professional 
development and the support and growth of individual teachers. 
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We administer a variety of tests, including the STEP assessment to diagnose students’ reading 
levels and deficiencies as soon as they enter kindergarten.  We also administer a nationally-
normed assessment, called the Northeast Evaluation Association (NWEA) Measures of Academic 
Progress (MAP) assessment.  This tool is used to quantify the progress of each individual student 
during the school year and assess the effectiveness of the school’s educational program overall. 
 
At the end of each unit, students take a teacher or curriculum created assessment. In addition, 
students take interim assessments, which are designed to mimic the state assessments, 
approximately four times per year. 
 
All of these various assessments allow teachers, students, administrators and parents to know 
precisely which standards students have mastered, so that no academic deficiency will ever come 
as a surprise and so that timely supports can be put in place. 
 
More Time to Learn 
We provide an approximately 178-day school year and a longer school day, from approximately 
7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Combined with frequent assessments and the strategic use of results, 
extended time allows us to ensure that students are achieving at the high levels we expect, and 
that they are on the path to college success.   
 
Character Development and Advisories 
It is every adult’s job to enforce the ideals of the community and teach young people how to 
behave and make good decisions.  We recognize that “[c]hildren first develop values, attitudes, 
and skills as a result of their experience in the families that raised them.  But those values, 
attitudes, and skills continue to be shaped by children’s interaction with their peers, teachers, 
neighbors, and other aspects of their environment.”1  In order to have teachers and other school 
staff positively affect students’ values, attitudes and skills, character development will continue 
to be an integral part of our academic program.  Our core values are represented by the acronym 
PRIDE - Professionalism, Respect, Integrity, Determination and Excellence.  We explicitly teach 
and reinforce these core values in advisories and whole-school gatherings. 
 
Family Involvement 
Parents and schools need to be partners in a child’s education.  The two need to be aligned 
philosophically and reinforce each other’s messages, so that the child is surrounded by a 
coherent, consistent and collective voice, which nurtures, encourages and demands academic 
success.  We foster a successful partnership with the parents of our children through a variety of 
steps listed, which could include the following. 
 

● Information Sessions ● Parent-Teacher Conferences 
● Home Visits 
● Commitments to Excellence 

● Parent Orientations 
● Volunteers 

                                                        
1  Thernstrom, Abigail, and Stephan Thernstrom.  No Excuses: Closing the Racial Gap in Learning.  New York: Simon and 
Schuster, 2003.  Page 66. 
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● Workshops ● Family Newsletters 
● Family Surveys  

  
Instructional Methods: Whereas some schools identify themselves as primarily a project-based 
school model, and other schools identify themselves as an experiential learning model, we are 
firmly committed to implementing varied instructional methods and techniques as appropriate 
and to best fit the needs of our students. 
 
While we have shied away from purchasing pre-packaged curricula in the past, in the era of the 
Common Core Standards (CCSS), we have moved to using Open Educational Resource (OER) 
curriculums that are fully CCSS-aligned.  Specifically, we use the EngageNY math curriculum, 
Wheatley ELA and Amplify Science curriculum in our K -8th grade courses. At the high school level 
we have introduced Agile Minds math curriculum and Unbound Ed ELA curriculum. We recently 
made this shift to ensure that the materials we put in front of our students are focused on grade 
level standards, coherent across grade levels, and emphasize the correct component of rigor for 
each standard.  
 
The use of these curriculums also changes the way teachers prepare for class.  Rather than 
creating their own scopes and sequences, unit plans, and lessons, teachers are provided with 
these materials and build their content knowledge by shifting their time to internalizing 
curriculum through protocols that help them study the standards, assessments, and progression 
of learning across a unit. We also run Weekly Data Meetings so that teachers have a dedicated 
time set aside each week to respond to student data. Teachers are then able to use that 
knowledge to help emphasize and modify the material within a lesson so that it meets the needs 
of all of their students.     
 
Study, Teach, Assess, Analyze, Remediate  
Our instructional model is built on a five-step process:  study, teach, assess, analyze, and 
remediate.  Once teachers have studied the material of a unit and lesson, they teach the lesson 
and assess student understanding with a daily exit ticket, which is based on the lesson’s 
learning objective.  The exit tickets are graded quickly and teachers analyze the student work to 
determine any misconceptions the students may have.  Teachers then create the most effective 
and least invasive remediation plan they can, based on the data.  This may range from opening 
the next day’s class by analyzing student work with the whole class, to tutoring a small group of 
students, to re-teaching the material to the entire class.  Teachers continually use daily 
formative assessments and student work to determine mastery, and work to correct any 
student misconceptions.  Larger summative assessments are administered at the end of each 
unit to assess standard mastery. 
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School Enrollment by Grade Level and School Year 
School 
Year K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Tota

l 
2014-15 64 57 - - - 57 89 86 91 81 88 83 - 640 

2015-16 62 64 60 - - 88 84 85 92 88 84 77 - 784 

2016-17 64 60 61 59 - 92 87 91 85 90 83 78 71 941 

2017-18 62 62 62 63 60 90 87 89 88 90 84 76 73 986 

2018-19 64 61 64 61 64 92 91 88 86 89 91 84 74 1009 

HIGH SCHOOL COHORTS 

ACCOUNTABILITY COHORT 
The state’s Accountability Cohort consists specifically of students who are in their fourth year of 
high school after entering the 9th grade.  For example, the 2015 state Accountability Cohort consists 
of students who entered the 9th grade anywhere sometime during the 2015-16 school year, were 
enrolled in the school on the state’s annual enrollment-determination day (i.e., BEDS day) in the 
2018-19 school year, and either remained in the school for the rest of the year or left for an 
acceptable reason.  (See New York State Education Department’s SIRS Manual for more details 
about cohort eligibility and acceptable exit reasons: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/ht) 

The following table indicates the number of students in the Accountability Cohorts who are in their 
fourth year of high school and were enrolled at the school on BEDS Day in October and remained in 
the school until June 30th of that year. 

 

Fourth-Year High School Accountability Cohorts 

Fourth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year Entered 
9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designatio

n 

Number of Students 
Enrolled on BEDS Day in 
October of the Cohort’s 

Fourth Year  

Number  
Leaving 

During the 
School Year 

Number in 
Accountability 
Cohort as of 

June 30th 
2016-17 2013-14 2013 79 6 73 
2017-18 2014-15 2014 81 1 80 
2018-19 2015-16 2015 66 1 66 

 

TOTAL COHORT FOR GRADUATION 
Students are also included in the Total Cohort for Graduation (referred to as the Graduation Cohort, 
Total Graduation Cohort, or Total Cohort interchangeably throughout this report) based on the year 
they first enter the 9th grade.   Students enrolled for at least one day in the school after entering the 
9th grade are part of the school’s Graduation Cohort.  The school may remove students from the 
Graduation Cohort if the school has discharged those students for an acceptable reason listed in the 
SIRS manual, including the following:  if they transfer to another public or private diploma-granting 
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program with documentation, transfer to home schooling by a parent or guardian, transfer to 
another district or school, transfer by court order, leave the U.S., or are deceased. 

 

Fourth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 

Fourth 
Year  

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 

9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designatio

n 

Number of Students 
Graduated or 

Enrolled on June 
30th of  the Cohort’s 

Fourth Year 
(a) 

 Number of Students No Longer 
at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 

Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason  
(b) 

Total 
Graduation 

Cohort 
(a) + (b) 

2016-
17 

2013-14 2013 75 0 76 

2017-
18 

2014-15 2014 80 2 82 

2018-
19 

2015-16 2015 67 2 67 

 

Fifth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 

Fifth 
Year  

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 

9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of 
Students 

Graduated or 
Enrolled on June 

30th of the Cohort’s 
Fifth Year  

(a) 

Number of Students No Longer 
at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 

Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason   
(b) 

Total 
Graduation 

Cohort 
(a) + (b) 

2016-
17 

2012-13 2012 - - - 

2017-
18 

2013-14 2013 74 1 75 

2018-
19 

2014-15 2014 77 4 81 

GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in first and second year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will 
earn at least ten credits (if 44 needed for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation) 
each year. 
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METHOD 
This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of the high school cohort and 
examines students’ progress toward graduation based on annual credit accumulation.  The measure 
requires that, based on the school’s promotion requirements, 75 percent of the first and second 
year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn the required number of credits. 

Promotion Policies 

To deliver on our mission, students must be fully prepared for the rigors of each following grade.  
Students will not automatically be passed from one grade to the next—we do not believe in social 
promotion.  Only students who have demonstrated mastery of essential knowledge and skills for a 
given grade will be promoted. 
 

 
Coney Island Prep High School defines scholars who are at risk for not graduating high school in four 
years as scholars who enter their 10th grade year with a 4 or more credit deficit, scholars who enter 
their 11th and 12th grade years with a 2 or more credit deficit, and scholars who have been 
previously retained at CIPHS or at another school. If a scholar is identified as a “high risk” student, 
the school’s administration will employ any methods possible to ensure a 4-year graduation rate. 
These possibilities include, but are not limited to:  

1. Scholar enrollment in extra core classes in lieu of elective classes. 
2. Scholar enrollment in after school classes from 4:00 – 5:00pm to earn credits.  
3. Scholar enrollment in courses that will yield the best opportunity for credit recovery or 

passed Regents exams. 
4. Scholar enrollment in after school tutoring for Regents preparation. 

 

Scholars will be closely monitored throughout the academic year. If a scholar fails to fulfill the 
requirements to get back on the four-year graduation track and is no longer qualified for a College 
and Career Readiness Diploma Designation, or she will be jeopardy of retention or a change in 
diploma track. Counselors and school administrators will create the best path forward that could 
include pursuing another diploma option and/or repeating a full grade. Scholars who are retained at 
a grade level will still keep the credits they have accumulated. At Coney Island Prep High School, the 
close of the 4th quarter marks the official end of the school year and Regents examination re-take 
opportunities are in mid-August. As such, the school makes final promotion decisions each year by 
August 20th.  
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
 

Percent of Students in First and Second Year Cohorts  
Earning the Required Number of Credits in 2018-19 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number in 
Cohort during 

2018-19 

Percent 
promoted  

2017 86 94% 
2018 83 90% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
In the 2016 and 2017 cohorts, 94% of the students earned the required number of credits, 
exceeding the measure by 24%. In 2018, 90% of students earned the required number of credits. 
We attribute this success to the strength of our curriculum and close tracking and communication 
of student progress.  

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the second year high school Total Graduation Cohort will score 
at or above proficient on at least three different New York State Regents exams required for 
graduation.   

METHOD 
This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of high school cohorts and examines 
their progress towards graduation based on Regents exam passage.  The measure requires that 75 
percent of students in each Graduation Cohort have passed at least three Regents exams by their 
second year in the cohort.  In August of 2019, the 2017 cohort will have completed its second year. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
In our 2015, 2016, and 201 cohort 88%,88%, and 92% of students scored at or above proficient on 
three or more Regents exams, exceeding the goal by 23 – 28%.  We attribute this success to our 
strong curriculum, measuring of student’s progress, and response to data.   

 

Percent of Students in their Second Year Passing Three Regents Exams by Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

 
School Year Number in 

Cohort 

Percent 
Passing Three 

Regents  
2015 2016-17 76 88% 
2016 2017-18 88 88% 
2017 2018-19 86 92% 
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ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
The percentage of our students passing three Regents exams has increased over time.  

Goal 1: Absolute Measures 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school Total Graduation Cohort and 95 
percent of students in the fifth year high school Total Graduation Cohort will graduate. 

METHOD 
This measure examines students in two high school Graduation Cohorts:  those who entered the 9th 
grade as members of the 2015 cohort and graduated four years later and those who entered as 
members of the 2014 cohort and graduated five years later.  These data reflect August graduation 
rates.  At a minimum, these students have passed five Regents exams required for high school 
graduation in ELA, mathematics, science, U.S. History, and Global History or met the requirements 
for the 4+1 pathway to graduation.2    

The school’s graduation requirements appear in this document below the graduation goal’s first 
measure pertaining to annual grade-by-grade promotion or credit accumulation. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Each year, the percentage of students graduating after four years has exceeded the goal of 75%.  In 
our 2015 cohort, 94% of our students graduated after four year, exceeding the goal by 19%.  The 
percentage of our students who graduated after five years has exceeded or met the goal.  

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who have Graduated After Four Years 
Cohort 

Designation 
School  
Year 

Number in 
Cohort  

Percent 
Graduating 

2013 2016-17 73 97% 
2014 2017-18 80 86% 
2015 2018-19 67 94% 

 

Percent of Students in Total Graduation Cohort Who Have Graduated After Five Years 
Cohort 

Designation 
School 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

2012 2016-17 - - 
2013 2017-18 73 100% 
2014 2018-19 81 95% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

 

 

                                                        
2 The state’s guidance for the 4+1 graduation pathway can be found here: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-pathways/. 
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Goal 1: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Graduation Cohort graduating after the 
completion of their fourth year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

METHOD 
The school compares the graduation rate of students completing their fourth year in the charter 
school’s Total Graduation Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district 
of comparison.3  Given that students may take Regents exams through the summer of their fourth 
year, district results for the current year are generally not available at this time.  As such, for 
purposes of this report schools should include the district’s 2017-18 results as a temporary 
placeholder for the district’s 2018-19 results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
We have two years of data that is comparable to the district. In our 2013 cohort, 97% of our 
students graduated within four year, surpassing our goal by 27%. In our 2014 cohort, 86% of our 
students graduated within four year, exceeding our goal by 12%.   We attribute this success to our 
strong curriculum and communication of progress with students.  

 

 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who  
Graduate in Four Years Compared to the District  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
School Year 

Charter School School  District 
Number in 

Cohort 
Percent 

Graduating 
Number in 

Cohort 
Percent 

Graduating  
2013 2016-17 73 97% 1,897 70% 
2014 2017-18 80 86% 2,186 74% 
2015 2018-19 67 94% Not yet 

released 
 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Our percent of students graduating within four years increased from our 2014 to 2015 cohort, so 
we expect to exceed our goal once again.  

 

                                                        
3 Schools can retrieve district level graduation rates from the SED’s Information and Reporting Services office.  News releases 
and an Excel workbook containing these data are available from the IRS Data Release webpage. 
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Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort pursuing an alternative graduation 
pathway (commonly referred to as the 4+1 pathway) will achieve a Regents equivalency score and 
pass an approved pathway assessment required for graduation by the end of their fourth year in 
the cohort. 

METHOD 
The New York State Board of Regents approved regulations establishing alternative pathways to 
graduation for all students.  Students may replace one of the required Social Studies Regents exams 
with an approved alternative assessment.  For more information about requirements and approved 
assessments refer to the NYSED resource online: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-
pathways/.  The school will document the names of the alternative assessments administered and 
success rate for students in the templates bellow. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Coney Island Prep has not had any students pursue an alternative graduation pathway.  

 

Percentage of the 2015 Graduation Cohort Pathway Students Demonstrating Success by Exam Type  
 

Exam 
Number of 

Graduation Cohort 
Members Tested 

(a) 

Number Passing or 
Achieving Regents 

Equivalency 
(b) 

 
Percentage Passing 

=[(b)/(a)]*100 

N/A    
 

Pathway Exam Passing Rate 
by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Cohort Designation 
 

School Year 
Number in 

Cohort 
Percent Passing a Pathway 

Exam 

2013 2016-17 N/A N/A 
2014 2017-18 N/A N/A 
2015 2018-19 N/A N/A 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
N/A 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION GOAL 
Type Measure Outcome 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in first and second year high 
school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn at least ten credits (if 44 
needed for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation) 
each year.    

92% 
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Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will score at least 65 on at least three different 
New York State Regents exams required for graduation by the 
completion of their second year in the cohort.   

92% 

Absolute 
 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school 
Total Graduation Cohort will graduate.   94% 

Absolute Each year, 95 percent of students in the fifth year high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will graduate. 95% 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total 
Graduation Cohort graduating after the completion of their fourth 
year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the 
school district of comparison. 

94% vs. 74% 

Absolute 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort 
pursuing an alternative graduation pathway will achieve a Regents 
equivalency score and pass an approved pathway assessment 
required for graduation by the end of their fourth year. 

N/A 

 

ACTION PLAN 
In order to sustain and improve our graduation rates we will maintain our current systems and 
curriculums, while continuing to search for new curriculums in all of our Regents subject areas.  

 

 

GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION 

 GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION 

 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate their preparation for college by at 
least one or some combination of the following indicators: 

● Passing an Advanced Placement (“AP”) exam with a score of 3 or higher; 

● Earning a score of 4 or higher on an International Baccalaureate (“IB”) exam; 

● Passing a College Level Examination Program (“CLEP”) exam; 

● Passing a college level course offered at a college or university or through a school 
partnership with a college or university; 

● Achieving the college and career readiness benchmark on the SAT; or, 

● Earning a Regents diploma with advanced designation; or, 
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METHOD 
Schools use any method listed here, or any combination thereof, to demonstrate that at least 75 
percent of graduates are prepared to engage in rigorous college level coursework.  The school 
should select only those methods listed here that it uses to demonstrate the college readiness of its 
students and eliminate those that it will not.  For instance, high schools that do not deliver an IB 
Program as part of their high school design do not report on the IB option.  The school reports on 
the number of students who attempted to achieve each indicator, the number who succeeded, and 
the corresponding percentage.  Additionally, the school should report on the overall number of 
students who graduated after four years, the number of those graduates who achieved any of the 
relevant measures, and the overall percentage achieving the measure.  
 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Overall, 63% of our students met at least one of the criteria listed above, falling short of the goal by 
12%.  This year we have reframed our goals for students graduating with and Advanced Regents 
diploma and we’re working on a new approach to AP classes, so we expect this percentage to climb 
in the coming years.  

 

Percentage of the 2015 Total Cohort Graduates Demonstrating College Preparation by Indicator  
 

Indicator 
Number of 

Graduates who 
Attempted the 

Indicator 

 
Number who Achieved 

Indicator 

 
Percentage of Graduates 
who Achieved Indicator 

Passing an Advanced 
Placement (“AP”) exam 

with a score of 3 or higher  

33 8 13% 

Passing a college level 
course offered at a college 
or university or through a 
school partnership with a 

college or university 

9 9 14% 

Achieving the college and 
career readiness 

benchmark on the SAT 

63 36 57% 

Earning a Regents 
diploma with advanced 

designation 

63 4 6% 

 
Overall 

63 40 63% 
 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
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Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index (“CCCRI”) for the school’s Total Cohort will 
exceed the Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA accountability system. 

METHOD 
The state’s finalized ESSA plan includes a College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index that measures 
the rate of completion among the Total Cohort of a variety of indicators of readiness for the next 
step after high school.  Indicators that are more rigorous and that are therefore more difficult to 
attain receive greater weight in the new CCCRI (e.g., attaining an Advanced Regents diploma and a 
score of 4 or higher on an IB exam).  Conversely, some less rigorous indicators that were not 
included in the College and Career Readiness Index under the state’s NCLB accountability system 
are included in the CCCRI (e.g., completion of a high school equivalency program).4 

To achieve this measure, the school must have a CCCRI value that equals or exceeds the 2018-19 
CCCRI MIP of 130 for all students.  The CCCRI is calculated by multiplying the number of students in 
the cohort demonstrating college, career, and civic readiness by the weighting for the method by 
which the student demonstrated college, career, and civic readiness, divided by the number of 
students in the Total Cohort.  The highest possible CCCRI is 200.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
For our 2018 - 2019 cohort, our CCCRI was 135, surpassing the benchmark by 5 points.   

 

CCCRI Performance by Cohort Year  

Graduation Year 
 

Cohort 
Number of 
Students in 

Cohort 

 
MIP 

 
School CCCRI 

2016-17 2013 N/A N/A N/A 
2017-18 2014 81 128  
2018-19 2015 67 130 1405 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

Goal 2: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school’s CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed that of the district of comparison’s 
Total Cohort. 

                                                        
4 For more detail about the weighting of college readiness methods for calculation of the CCCRI, see pages 64-65 of 
the state’s finalized ESSA plan here. 
5 Our calculation differs from the state because it includes students passing AP and College Now courses which was 
not included in data submitted to NYSED. 
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METHOD 
The school compares the CCCRI of students from the fourth year in the charter school Total Cohort 
to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
The district level data has not been released yet, so we’re unable to evaluate our goal.  

 

  

CCRI of Fourth-Year Total Cohort by Charter School and School District 
Cohor

t 
Charter School School District 

2013 N/A N/A 
2014  105.7 
2015 135 Not yet released 

 

 

 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate into a college or university in the year 
after graduation. 

METHOD 
The ultimate measure of whether a college prep high school has lived up to its mission is whether 
students actually enroll and succeed in college.  Schools track and report the percentage of fourth-
year Total Cohort graduates who matriculate into a two or four-year college program in the school 
year following graduation. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
In our 2014 cohort, 83% of students matriculated into a college or university in the year after 
graduation, exceeding the measure by 8%.  Coney Island Prep has a College Team that assists 
students with the college matriculation process and continues to support them throughout their 
college years.  The College Team collects the data and is a driving factor in our results.  

 

Matriculation Rate of Graduates by Year 

Cohor
t 

 
 

Graduation Year 

Number of 
Graduates 

 
(a) 

Number Enrolled 
in 2 or 4-year 

Program in 
Following Year 

(b) 

Matriculation 
Rate 

 
=[(b)/(a)]*100 

2013 2016-17 71 66 93 
2014 2017-18 69 57 83 
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2015 2018-19 63 59 94 
 

 

 

SUMMARY OF THE COLLEGE PREPARATION GOAL 
 

 
Type Measure (Accountability Plan from 2012-13 or later) Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate 
their preparation for college by one or more possible 
indicators of college readiness.  

63% 

Absolute 
Each year, the CCCRI for the school’s Total Cohort will exceed 
that year’s state MIP set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

140 vs. 135 

Comparative Each year, the school’s CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed 
that of the district’s Total Cohort. 140 vs. 105 

Absolute Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate 
into a college or university in the year after graduation. 94% 

 

 

ACTION PLAN 
 

GOAL 3: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Goal 3: English Language Arts 

BACKGROUND 
For our K-8 ELA curriculum we use KIPP Wheatley.  KIPP Wheatley is a comprehensive reading and 
writing curriculum that is aligned to the Common Core State Standards for ELA.  Each grade level 
consists of four modules (one per quarter) that each focus on a grade level novel with supporting 
texts.  Each module has two check-point assessment and one end of module assessment.  Teachers 
and coaches receive training on the curriculum prior to the school year and professional 
development sessions as needed.   

Our high school uses EngageNY’s 9-12 ELA curriculum, which is aligned to the Common Core State 
Standards.  Each grade level completes three modules per year, which each consist of three units. 
Within each unit students complete a mid-unit and end of unit assessment.   

 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 



2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Coney Island Prep Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report                                       
Page 19 of 58 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at or 
above proficiency on the New York State English language arts examination for grades 3-8.   

METHOD 
The school administered the New York State Testing Program English language arts (“ELA”) 
assessment to students in 3 through 8 grade in April 2019.  Each student’s raw score has been 
converted to a grade-specific scaled score and a performance level.   

The table below summarizes participation information for this year’s test administration.   The table 
indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested.  It also provides a detailed 
breakdown of those students excluded from the exam.  Note that this table includes all students 
according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second year (defined as 
enrolled by BEDS day of the previous school year).   

2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam 
Number of Students Tested and Not Tested 

  
Grade 

Total 
Tested 

Not Tested6 Total 
Enrolled IEP ELL Absent Refused 

3 59    2 61 
4 63     63 
5 87     87 
6 91     91 
7 90     90 
8 84   1  85 

All 474   1 2 477 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Overall, 55% of students in their second year at Coney Island Prep performed at or above 
proficiency on the NYS ELA exam.  While this percent falls below the goal, we have seen this 
number increase by 27% over the past two years and we expect it to continue to rise.  Our results 
are stronger in our elementary school, where students have been with us from the beginning of 
their school careers.  

 

Performance on 2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Grades 
All Students   Enrolled in at least their 

Second Year 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested  

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested  

3 76% 61 80% 50 
4 65% 63 68% 57 
5 41% 87 44% 50 

                                                        
6 Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English Language 
Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam. 
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6 51% 91 51% 83 
7 46% 90 44% 84 
8 54% 85 54% 81 

All  54% 477 55% 405 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

ELA Performance by Grade Level and Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 
Achieving Proficiency  

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Percent Number 
Tested Percent Number 

Tested Percent Number 
Tested 

3 63% 51 70% 57 80% 50 
4 N/A 0 57% 47 68% 57 
5 0% 1 N/A 0 44% 50 
6 30% 73 60% 81 51% 83 
7 47% 75 49% 80 44% 84 
8 58% 79 63% 83 54% 81 

All 48% 279 59% 348 55% 405 

 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the school’s aggregate Performance Index (“PI”) on the State English language arts exam 
will meet that year’s state Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

METHOD 
In New York State, ESSA school performance goals are met by showing that an absolute proportion 
of a school's students who have taken the English language arts test have scored at the partially 
proficient, or proficient and advanced performance levels (Levels 2 or 3 & 4).  The percentage of 
students at each of these three levels is used to calculate a PI and determine if the school has met 
the MIP set each year by the state’s ESSA accountability system.  To achieve this measure, all tested 
students must have a PI value that equals or exceeds the state’s 2018-19 English language arts MIP 
for all students of 105.  The PI is the sum of the percent of students in all tested grades combined 
scoring at Level 2, plus two times the percent of students scoring at Level 3, plus two-and-a-half 
times the percent of students scoring at Level 4.  Thus, the highest possible PI is 250.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
This year our PI was 150.  The state has not yet released the MIP, so we are unable to evaluate the 
goal.  

 

English Language Arts 2018-19 Performance Index 
Percent of Students at Each Performance Level  
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Number in 
Cohort  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4  

405 16 31 37 17  
      
  PI = 31 + 37 + 17 = 85  
        37 + 17 = 57  
         + (.5)*1

7 
= 8.5  

           PI 
 

= 
 

150.
5 

 

 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year and 
performing at proficiency on the state English language arts exam will be greater than that of all 
students in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 
A school compares tested students enrolled in at least their second year to all tested students in the 
public school district of comparison.  Comparisons are between the results for each grade in which 
the school had tested students in at least their second year at the school and the total result for all 
students at the corresponding grades in the school district.7 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
This year 55% of students in their second year at CIP were proficient on the ELA exam. This mark is 
2% lower than our comparable district, which falls just shy of the goal.  It’s notable that our 3rd, 
4th, and 5th grade cohorts outperformed the district by 24%, 15%, and 1%, and we expect to see 
this continue in addition to other grades outperforming the district.  

 

2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam  
Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 

Percent of Students at  or Above Proficiency 
Charter School Students 

In At Least 2nd Year All District Students 

Percent Number 
Tested Percent Number 

Tested 
3 80% 50 56% 1,157 
4 68% 57 53% 1,159 
5 44% 50 43% 926 
6 51% 83 63% 1,876 
7 44% 84 58% 1,676 
8 54% 81 64% 1,835 

                                                        
7 Schools can acquire these data when the New York State Education Department releases its database containing grade level 
ELA and math test results for all schools and districts statewide.  The NYSED announces the release of the data on its News 
Release webpage. 
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All 55% 405 57% 8,629 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

English Language Arts Performance of Charter School and Local District 
by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year Scoring at or 
Above Proficiency Compared to District Students  

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 
Charter 
School  District Charter 

School  District  Charter 
School  District  

3 63% 45% 70% 52% 80% 56% 
4 N/A N/A 57% 55% 68% 53% 
5 0% 38% N/A 43% 44% 43% 
6 30% 51% 60% 63% 51% 63% 
7 47% 49% 49% 57% 44% 58% 
8 58% 57% 63% 66% 54% 64% 

All 48% 48% 59% 57% 55% 57% 
 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state English language 
arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to a meaningful 
degree) according to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students 
among all public schools in New York State. 

METHOD 
The SUNY Charter Schools Institute (“Institute”) conducts a comparative performance analysis, 
which compares the school’s performance to that of demographically similar public schools 
statewide.  The Institute uses a regression analysis to control for the percentage of economically 
disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State.   The Institute compares the 
school’s actual performance to the predicted performance of public schools with a similar 
concentration of economically disadvantaged students.  The difference between the school’s actual 
and predicted performance, relative to other schools with similar economically disadvantaged 
statistics, produces an Effect Size.  An Effect Size of 0.3, or performing higher than expected to a 
meaningful degree, is the requirement for achieving this measure.   

Given the timing of the state’s release of economically disadvantaged data and the demands of the 
data analysis, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the 
most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Our average effect size is a 1.28, which exceeds our goal of an effect size of 0.3.  Our highest effect 
sizes are 1.44 in 4th grade, and 1.43 in 8th grade, which make sense because most of those students 
have been with us for at least three years.  Our lowest effect size was a 0.7 in 4th grade. This is in 
line with expectations because those students have just entered Coney Island Prep. 
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2017-18 English Language Arts Comparative Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 
Percent 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested 

Percent of Students 
at Levels 3&4 

Difference 
between Actual 
and Predicted 

Effect  
Size 

Actual Predicted 
3 69.8 62 67.7 46.7 21.1 1.2 
4 81 59 52.5 39.1 13.4 .7 
5 91.1 90 44.4 23.9 20.6 1.44 
6 89 88 60.2 35.1 25.1 1.38 
7 90.1 89 47.2 26.5 20.6 1.34 
8 88.8 87 62.1 36.5 25.5 1.43 

All 86.1 475 55.2 33.7 21.5 1.28 
 

School’s Overall Comparative Performance: 

Higher than expected to large degree 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

English Language Arts Comparative Performance by School Year 

School 
Year Grades 

Percent 
Economically 
Disadvantage

d 

Number 
Tested Actual Predicted Effect 

Size 

2015-16 5-8 86.8 340 29.4 22.9 .40 

2016-17 3, 5-8 83.8 41 43.1 27.5 .88 

2017-18 K-8 86.1% 475 55.5 33.7 1.28 
 

Goal 3: Growth Measure8  

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model, the school’s mean unadjusted growth percentile in 
English language arts for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50.   

METHOD 
This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one year to 
the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the same score in 
the previous year.  The analysis only includes students who took the state exam in 2017-18 and also 
have a state exam score from 2016-17 including students who were retained in the same grade.  
Students with the same 2016-17 score are ranked by their 2017-18 score and assigned a percentile 
based on their relative growth in performance (student growth percentile).  Students’ growth 

                                                        
8 See Guidelines for Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan for an explanation. 
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percentiles are aggregated school-wide to yield a school’s mean growth percentile.  In order for a 
school to perform above the target for this measure, it must have a mean growth percentile greater 
than 50. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of Growth Model data, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet 
available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the most recent Growth Model data available.9   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Our overall mean growth percentile for all grades was 59%, exceeding the goal by 9%.  

2017-18 English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level 

Grade 
Mean Growth Percentile 

School Target 
4 53 50.0 
5 68 50.0 
6 60 50.0 
7 60 50.0 
8 55 50.0 

All 59 50.0 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year 

Grad
e 

Mean Growth Percentile 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-
18 Target 

4 N/A N/A 53 50.0 
5 41 53 68 50.0 
6 63 65 60 50.0 
7 55 65 60 50.0 
8 62 63 55 50.0 

All 55 61 59 50.0 

 

SUMMARY OF THE ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 
 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York State English 
language arts exam for grades 3-8.  

55% 

Absolute 
Each year, the school’s aggregate PI on the state’s English language arts 
exam will meet that year’s state MIP as set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

150.5 compared 
to `35 

                                                        
9 Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED’s Business Portal: portal.nysed.gov. 
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Comparative 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year and performing at proficiency on the state English 
language arts exam will be greater than that of students in the same tested 
grades in the school district of comparison.  

55% compared 
to 57% 

Comparative 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the 
state English language arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or above 
(performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree) according to a 
regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students 
among all public schools in New York State. (Using 2017-18 results.) 

1.28 

Growth 
Each year, under the state’s Growth Model the school’s mean unadjusted 
growth percentile in English language arts for all tested students in grades 
4-8 will be above the target of 50. (Using 2017-18 results.)  

59 

ACTION PLAN 
 

 

HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 
The school administered the Regents English exam that students must pass to graduate.  The school 
scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100.  The State Education Department currently defines the 
college and career readiness standard as scoring at or above Performance Level 4 (meeting 
Common Core expectations) on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core).  This 
measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance 
Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
In our 2015 cohort 65% of the students scored at least a Level 4, meeting the goal.  While this 
number has decreased recently, we are encouraged by our new curriculum and coaching systems at 
the high school.  

 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 4 on Regents English Common Core Exam 
by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort10  

                                                        
10 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Our PI was a 118.  We do not yet have the comparison data to be able to evaluate our goal.  

English Language Arts Performance Index (PI)  
For the 2015 High School Accountability Cohort 

Number in 
Cohort  

Percent of Students at Each Accountability Level  
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4  

 2% 79% 20% 2%  
      
  PI = 79 + 18 + 1.5 = 98.5  
        18 + 1.5 = 19.5  
         + (.5)*1.5 = .75  
           PI = 118.

75 
 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort meeting or exceeding Common 
Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the 
percentage of comparable students in the district meeting or exceeding Common Core 
expectations. 

METHOD 
The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total 
Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison.  Due 
to availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and not the 
Accountability Cohort results.    In order to meet or exceed Common Core expectations, a student 
must achieve Performance Level 4 or 5.  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the 
summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
In our 2015 cohort, 64% of the students scored a level 4 or 5 on the English Regents, but we don’t 
have comparable data for the district. In previous years we outperformed the district by 14% and 
16% respectively, so we anticipate outperforming the district this year as well.  

 

Percent Achieving Performance Level 4 or Higher on English Regents   
of Fourth-Year Total Cohorts by Charter School and School District  

Cohor
t 

 
Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 
Percent 

Level 4 or 5 
Number in 

Cohort 
Percent 

Level 4 or 5 
Number in 

Cohort 
2013 2016-17 77% 75 63% 2,217 
2014 2017-18 74% 76 58% 2,941 
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2015 2018-19 64% 67 Not yet 
released 

 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) will 
exceed the percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting Common 
Core expectations. 

METHOD 
The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total 
Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison.  Due 
to availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and not the 
Accountability Cohort results.  In order to at least partially meet Common Core expectations, a 
student would need to pass the exam and score at Performance Level 3 or higher (i.e. scoring at 
least 65).  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, 
the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
In our 2015 cohort, 95% of the students performed at a level 3 or higher on the English Regents 
exam, but we don’t have comparable data to be able to evaluate the goal.  If previous years are an 
indication we should exceed this goal by at least 15%.  

 

 

 

Percent Achieving Performance Level 3 or Higher on English Regents   
of Fourth-Year Total Cohorts by Charter School and School District  

Cohor
t 

 
Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 
Percent Level 

3 or Higher 
Number in 

Cohort 
Percent Level 

3 or Higher 
Number in 

Cohort 
2013 2016-17 99% 75 88% 2,217 
2014 2017-18 95% 76 81% 2,941 
2015 2018-19 95% 67 Not yet 

released 
 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
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Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) in Regents English of students in the fourth year of their 
high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school district 
of comparison. 

METHOD 
The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school 
Accountability Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of 
comparison.  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth 
year, the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
For our 2015 cohort, our PI was 119.  We do not have the comparative data yet to be able to 
evaluate against our goal.  

 

English Regents Performance Index (PI)13   
of Fourth-Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and School District  

Cohort 
 

Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 

PI Cohort 
Size PI Cohort 

Size 
2013 2016-17 176 75 149 2,217 
2014 2017-18 200 76 173 2,941 
2015 2018-19 119 67 Not yet 

released 
 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade English language arts exam will meet the college and 
career readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common 
Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 
The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling 
students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to meet the English 
requirement for the college and career readiness standard.   

                                                        
13 For an explanation of the procedure to calculate the school’s PI, see page 28. 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
In our 2015 cohort, 61% of the students who did not score Proficient on the 8th grade ELA exam 
met the college and career readiness standard on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts. 

 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 4 on Common Core exam among Students  
Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 14  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Achieving Level 4 
on Common Core exam 

2013 2016-17 37 65% 
2014 2017-18 45 67% 
2015 2018-19 33 61% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade English language arts exam will at least partially meet 
Common Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 
The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling 
students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to meet the English 
requirement for graduation.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
In our 2015 cohort, 94% of our students who did not score proficient on their 8th grade ELA exam 
scored a Level 3 or higher on their ELA Regents exam exceeding the goal by 19%. This is an increase 
over our 2014 cohort.  

 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 3 on Common Core exam among Students  
Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 15  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
Fourth  
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Achieving Level 3 
on Regents English Exam 

                                                        
14 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 

15 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 
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2013 2016-17 37 97% 
2014 2017-18 45 93% 
2015 2018-19 33 94% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL  
 

 
Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

65% 

Absolute 
 

Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

95% 

Absolute 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) on the Regents English exam of 
students completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet 
the state Measure of Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system.  

119 (state MIP 
191) 

Comparativ
e 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable 
students from the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations. 

64% vs. 58% 

Comparativ
e 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable students in the 
district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations. 

95% vs. 81% 

Comparativ
e 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents English of students in the 
fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of 
comparable students from the school district of comparison.  (Using 2016-17 
school district results.) 

119 vs. 173 

Growth 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
language arts exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations 
(currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort. 

61% 

Growth 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
language arts exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations 
(currently scoring at least Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort. 

94% 

 



2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Coney Island Prep Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report                                       
Page 33 of 58 

ACTION PLAN 
 

GOAL 4: MATHEMATICS 

Goal 4: Mathematics 

BACKGROUND 
Over the past two years we have adopted several new standards aligned math curriculums. For 3rd 
through 5th grade we use EngageNY and pair it with Zearn, an online companion to EngageNY.  For 
6th through 8th grade we use Illustrative Math. Teachers receive three days of professional 
development about these curriculums before the start of the school year. During the school year, 
teachers receive weekly feedback via lesson internalization meetings, data meetings, and 
observations.  

 

Goal 4:  Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at 
proficiency on the New York State mathematics examination for grades 3-8.  

METHOD 
The school administered the New York State Testing Program mathematics assessment to students 
in 3rd through 8th grade in April 2019.  Each student’s raw score has been converted to a grade-
specific scaled score and a performance level.   

The table below summarizes participation information for this year’s test administration.   The table 
indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested.  It also provides a detailed 
breakdown of those students excluded from the exam.  Note that this table includes all students 
according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second year.  

 

2018-19 State Mathematics Exam 
Number of Students Tested and Not Tested 

Grade Total 
Tested 

Not Tested16 Total 
Enrolled IEP ELL Absent Refused 

3 59    2 61 
4 63     63 
5 86   1  87 
6 91     91 
7 90     90 
8 84   1  85 

                                                        
16 Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English Language 
Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam. 



2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Coney Island Prep Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report                                       
Page 34 of 58 

All 473   2 2 481 

 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Overall, 53% of our students in their second year performed at proficiency on the NYS mathematics 
exam, falling short of the goal by 22%. Notably, our 4th grade cohort exceeded the goal by 4%, and 
our 3rd grade cohort missed the goal by just 7%. With our adoption of new curriculums and 
practices we expect our overall percent to steadily climb over the next two years.  

 

Performance on 2018-19 State Mathematics Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

 

Grades 
All Students   Enrolled in at least their 

Second Year 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested  

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested  

3 68% 59 68% 50 
4 75% 63 79% 57 
5 47% 86 53% 49 
6 42% 91 42% 83 
7 49% 90 48% 84 
8 44% 84 44% 81 

All  52% 473 53% 404 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

 

Performance on a Regents Mathematics Exam 
Of 8th Grade All Students by Year 

 

 
Grade Year Regents 

Exam  

Percent 
Passing 

with a 65 

Number 
Tested  

8 2016-17 Algebra 1 100% 41 
8 2017-18 Algebra 1 100% 21 
8 2018-19 N/A  0 

 

 

This year we decided to de-track our math classes, so all of our 8th grade students were enrolled in 
8th grade math. We did not have any students taking the Algebra 1 Regents Exam.  
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Mathematics Performance by Grade Level and School Year 

Grad
e 

Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 
Achieving Proficiency  

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Percent Number 
Tested Percent 

Numbe
r 

Tested 

Percen
t 

Numbe
r 

Tested 
3 56% 50 79% 57 68% 50 
4 N/A 0 55% 47 79% 57 
5 0% 1 N/A N/A 53% 49 
6 44% 71 47% 81 42% 83 
7 43% 74 48% 80 48% 84 
8 56% 78 57% 83 44% 81 

All 49% 274 56% 348 53% 404 
 

Goal 4:  Absolute Measure 

Each year, the school’s aggregate Performance Index (“PI”) on the state mathematics exam will 
meet that year’s state Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

METHOD 
In New York State, ESSA school performance goals are met by showing that an absolute proportion 
of a school's students who have taken the mathematics test have scored at the partially proficient, 
or proficient and advanced performance levels (Levels 2 or 3 & 4).  The percentage of students at 
each of these three levels is used to calculate a PI and determine if the school has met the MIP set 
each year by the state’s ESSA accountability system.  To achieve this measure, all tested students 
must have a PI value that equals or exceeds the state’s 2018-19 mathematics MIP for all students of 
107.  The PI is the sum of the percent of students in all tested grades combined scoring at Level 2, 
plus two times the percent of students scoring at Level 3, plus two-and-a-half times the percent of 
students scoring at Level 4.  Thus, the highest possible PI is 250.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Our PI was 146.5, exceeding the MP by 38.5 points.  

 

Mathematics 2017-18 Performance Level Index (PI)  
Number in 

Cohort  
Percent of Students at Each Performance Level  

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4  
 18% 30% 27% 25%  
      
  PI = 30 + 27 + 25 = 82  
        27 + 

+ 
25 

(.5)*25 
= 
= 

52 
12.5 

 

           PI = 146.5  
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Goal 4:  Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year and 
performing at proficiency on the state mathematics exam will be greater than that of all students in 
the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 
A school compares the performance of tested students enrolled in at least their second year to that 
of all tested students in the public school district of comparison.  Comparisons are between the 
results for each grade in which the school had tested students in at least their second year at the 
school and the total result for all students at the corresponding grades in the school district.17 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Overall, 53% of our students in their second year scored proficient, which is 5% less than their 
counterparts in our district of comparison. Notably, our 3rd through 5th grade students met or 
exceeded this goal. Given our new 6th-8th grade curriculum and practices, we expect our middle 
school students to meet or exceed this goal within the next two years.    

  
         

Grade 

Percent of Students at or Above Proficiency 
Charter School Students 

In At Least 2nd Year All District Students 

Percent Number 
Tested Percent Number 

Tested 
3 68% 50 61% 1,307 
4 79% 57 56% 1,140 
5 53% 49 54% 1.063 
6 42% 83 59% 1,613 
7 48% 84 60% 1,690 
8 44% 81 61% 1.417 

All 53% 404 58% 9,021 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

Mathematics Performance of Charter School and Local District  
by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year Who Are at 
Proficiency Compared to Local District Students  

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 
Charter 
School  District  Charter 

School  District  Charter 
School  District  

3 56% 51% 79% 58% 68% 61% 

                                                        
17 Schools can acquire these data when the New York State Education Department releases its database containing grade level 
ELA and math test results for all schools and districts statewide.  The NYSED announces the release of the data on its News 
Release webpage. 
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4 N/A 45% 55% 52% 79% 56% 
5 0% 46% N/A 49% 53% 54% 
6 44% 52% 47% 57% 42% 59% 
7 43% 56% 48% 59% 48% 60% 
8 56% 47% 57% 57% 44% 61% 

All 49% 50% 56% 56% 53% 58% 
 

Goal 4:  Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state mathematics exam 
by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree) 
according to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students among all 
public schools in New York State. 

METHOD 
The Institute conducts a Comparative Performance Analysis, which compares the school’s 
performance to that of demographically similar public schools statewide.  The Institute uses a 
regression analysis to control for the percentage of economically disadvantaged students among all 
public schools in New York State.   The Institute compares the school’s actual performance to the 
predicted performance of public schools with a similar concentration of economically 
disadvantaged students.  The difference between the school’s actual and predicted performance, 
relative to other schools with similar economically disadvantaged statistics, produces an Effect Size.  
An Effect Size of 0.3, or performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree, is the 
requirement for achieving this measure. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of economically disadvantaged data and the demands of the 
data analysis, the 2017-18 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the 
most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Overall, our effect size was 1.07, exceeding the goal by 0.77. Notable, every grade level exceeded 
the goal with our strongest performance coming in 8th grade and an effect size of 1.87.  
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2017-18 Mathematics Comparative Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 
Percent 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested 

Percent of Students 
at Levels 3&4 

Difference 
between Actual 
and Predicted 

Effect  
Size 

Actual Predicted 
3 69.8 62 75.8 49.7 26.1 1.34 
4 81 59 50.8 38.2 12.6 .6 
5 91.1 90 34.4 27.7 6.8 .39 
6 89 88 46.6 28.1 18.5 .9 
7 90.1 89 47.2 24 23.2 1.25 
8 88.8 87 56.3 21.1 35.2 1.85 

All 86.1 475 50.5 30.1 20.5 1.07 
 

School’s Overall Comparative Performance: 

Higher than expected to large degree 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

Mathematics Comparative Performance by School Year 
 

School 
Year Grades 

Percent 
Economically 
Disadvantage

d 

Number 
Tested Actual Predicted Effect 

Size 

2015-16 5-8 86.8 337 39.2 19.0 1.05 
2016-17 3, 5-8 83.8 412 50.0 24.2 1.37 
2017-18 3-8 86% 475 50.5 30.1 1.07 

 

Goal 4: Growth Measure18  

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model, the school’s mean unadjusted growth percentile in 
mathematics for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50.   

METHOD 
This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one year to 
the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the same score in 
the previous year.  The analysis only includes students who took the state exam in 2017-18 and also 
have a state exam score in 2016-17 including students who were retained in the same grade.  
Students with the same 2016-17 scores are ranked by their 2017-18 scores and assigned a 
percentile based on their relative growth in performance (student growth percentile).  Students’ 
growth percentiles are aggregated school-wide to yield a school’s mean growth percentile.  In order 

                                                        
18 See Guidelines for Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan for an explanation. 
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for a school to meet the measure, the school would have to achieve a mean growth percentile 
above the target of 50. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of Growth Model data, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet 
available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the most recent Growth Model data available.19   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Overall our Mean Growth Percentile for grades 4 through 8 was 56, exceeding the goal by 6 points. 
Notable performances include our 5th grade cohort, which exceeded the goal by 15 points, and our 
8th grade cohort, which exceeded the goal by 9 points.  

 

2017-18 Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level 

Grade 
Mean Growth Percentile 

School Target 
4 49 50.0 
5 65 50.0 
6 50 50.0 
7 58 50.0 
8 59 50.0 

All 56 50.0 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

 

Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year 
Grad

e 
Mean Growth Percentile 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 Target 
4 N/A N/A 49 50.0 
5 49 64 65 50.0 
6 65 78 50 50.0 
7 58 80 58 50.0 
8 65 74 59 50.0 

All 59 74 56 50.0 

 

SUMMARY OF THE MATHEMATICS GOAL 
 

Type Measure Outcome 

                                                        
19 Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED’s business portal: portal.nysed.gov. 
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Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York State 
mathematics exam for grades 3-8.  

53% 

Absolute 
Each year, the school’s aggregate PI on the state’s English language arts 
exam will meet that year’s state MIP as set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

147 vs. 107 

Comparative 
Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year and performing at proficiency on the state mathematics 
exam will be greater than that of students in the same tested grades in the 
school district of comparison.  

53% vs. 58% 

Comparative 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the 
state mathematics exam by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above (performing 
higher than expected to a meaningful degree) according to a regression 
analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students among all 
public schools in New York State. (Using 2017-18 results.) 

1.07 

Growth 
Each year, under the state’s Growth Model the school’s mean unadjusted 
growth percentile in mathematics for all tested students in grades 4-8 will 
be above the target of 50. (Using the 2017-18 results.)   

56 

 

ACTION PLAN 
 

 

HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS 

 

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics 
exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 
The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate.  
The school scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100.  The State Education Department currently 
defines the college and career readiness standard as scoring at or above Performance Level 4 
(meeting Common Core expectations) on any Regents Common Core mathematics exams.  This 
measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance 
Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
In our 2015 cohort, 24% of the students in the Accountability Cohort scored at or above a Level 4 on 
a Regents mathematics exam, missing the goal by 41%. We have put in place several measures to 
increase this score in the coming school year.  We’ve adopted a new mathematics curriculum, Agile 
Minds, which will allow is to do targeted professional development (e.g. unit internalization, lesson 
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students in the Accountability Cohort must have a PI that equals or exceeds the state’s 2018-19 
mathematics MIP for all students of 151.  

The Performance Index is calculated as such: (percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 2) 
+ 2*(percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 3) + 2.5 * (percent of students scoring at 
Accountability Level 4).  Thus, the highest possible PI is 250.  The basis for the percent of students is 
the school’s fourth year Accountability Cohort.  Regents Common Core mathematics exams are 
scored on a scale from 0 to 100; 0 to 64 is Accountability Level 1, 65 to 79 is Accountability Level 2 
(65 to 77 for Algebra II); 80 to 84 is Accountability Level 3 (78 to 84 for Algebra II), and 85 to 100 is 
Accountability Level 4. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Our Performance Index for high school mathematics was a 121, falling short of the goal of 151.  

 

Mathematics Performance Index (PI)  
For the 2015 High School Accountability Cohort 

Number in 
Cohort  

Percent of Students at Each Accountability Level  
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4  

 1.5% 80% 17% 3%  
      
  PI = 80 + 17 + 3 = 100  
        17 + 3 = 20  
         + (.5)*1.5 = 1.5  
           PI = 121.5  

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
To help improve this index, we’ve adopted a new math curriculum, Agile Minds.  In addition to the 
curriculum, teachers will receive weekly professional development and coaching.  

 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort meeting or exceeding Common 
Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exams will exceed the percentage of comparable 
students in the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations. 

METHOD 
The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total 
Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison.  Due 
to availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and not the 
Accountability Cohort results.  In order to meet or exceed Common Core expectations, a student 
must achieve Performance Level 4 or 5.  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the 
summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available school district results. 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
In our 2015 cohort, 24% of the students were at a Level 4 or 5. We do not yet have comparable data 
to be able to evaluate the goal, but if past scores are an indicator we are on track to meet and 
slightly exceed the goal.  

 

 

Percent Achieving Performance Level 4 or Higher on a Mathematics Regents   
of Fourth-Year Total Cohorts by Charter School and School District  

Cohor
t 

 
Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 

Percent Level 4 or 5 Number in 
Cohort Percent Level 4 or 5 Number in 

Cohort 
2013 2016-17 60% 75 14% 386 
2014 2017-18 35% 82 20% 2,941 
2015 2018-19 24% 67 N/A N/A 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exams will exceed the percentage of 
comparable students in the district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations. 

METHOD 
The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total 
Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison.  Due 
to availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and not the 
Accountability Cohort results.  In order to at least partially meet Common Core expectations, a 
student would need to pass the exam and score at Performance Level 3 or higher (i.e. scoring at 
least 65).Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, 
the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
This year, 99% of our students at least partially met the Common Core expectations on a Regents 
mathematics exam.  We do not yet have comparable data to be able to evaluate the goal, but if 
past scores are an indicator we are on pace to exceed our goal.  
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Percent Achieving Performance Level 3 or Higher on a Mathematics Regents   
of Fourth-Year Total Cohorts by Charter School and School District  

Cohor
t 

 
 

Fourth  
Year 

Charter School School District 

Percent Level 3 or 
Higher 

Number in 
Cohort Percent Level 3 or 

Higher 

Number in 
Cohort 

2013 2016-17 100% 75 82% 2,698 
2014 2017-18 96% 82 80% 2,941 
2015 2018-19 99% 67   

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) in Regents mathematics of students in the fourth year of 
their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school 
district of comparison. 

METHOD 
The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school 
Accountability Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of 
comparison.  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth 
year, the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
This year our PI was 121.5. We do not have comparable data from this year to be able to evaluate 
the goal but this exceeds the PI of our local district in the 2017 – 18 school year. 

 

Mathematics Regents Performance Index (PI)   
of Fourth-Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and School District  

Cohort 
 

Fourth 
Year  

Charter School School District 

PI Cohort 
Size PI Cohort 

Size 
2013 2016-17 139 75 123 2,698 
2014 2017-18 138 75 114 2,941 
2015 2018-19 121.5 67 Not yet 

released 
 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
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Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam will meet the college and career 
readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common Core 
expectations on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 
The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who 
were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to grow to meeting the mathematics 
requirement for the college and career readiness standard.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
This year 7.4% of our students in the Accountability Cohort who did not score proficient on their 
NYS 8th grade math exam scored a 4 on a Regents math exam, falling short of the goal by 43%. 
While we did not meet the goal, this represents an increase from last year and we expect this 
number to continue to rise given the changes to our HS math program.  

 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 4 on a Mathematics Regents Exam among Students  
Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 23  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Achieving Level 4 
on Common Core Exam 

2013 2016-17 30 7% 
2014 2017-18 35 3% 
2015 2018-19 26 7.4% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

 

Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam will at least partially meet Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by 
the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

                                                        
23 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 
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METHOD 
The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who 
were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to move to meeting the English 
requirement for graduation.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
This year 100% of our students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score proficient 
on their NYS 8th grade math exam scored a Level 3 or higher on a Regents math exam, exceeding 
the goal by 25%.  

 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 3 on a Mathematics Regents Exam among Students  
Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 24  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort Percent Achieving Level 3  

2013 2016-17 30 100% 
2014 2017-18 35 97% 
2015 2018-19 27 96% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS GOAL 25 
 

 
Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

24% 

Absolute 
 

Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

98% 

Absolute 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in mathematics of students 
completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the state 
Measure of Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system.  

121 vs.  151 

Comparativ
e 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will 
exceed the percentage of comparable students from the district meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations. 

24% vs. 20% 

                                                        
24 Based on the highest score for each student on the mathematics Regents exam 

25 If the school includes a middle school component, add these measures to the subject area goal for the younger grades. 
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Comparativ
e 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will exceed the 
percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations. 

99% vs. 80% 

Comparativ
e 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents mathematics of students in 
the fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of 
comparable students from the school district of comparison.  (Using 2016-17 
school district results.) 

139 vs. 123 

Growth 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics 
exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

7.4% 

Growth 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics 
exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently 
scoring at least Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

96% 

 

ACTION PLAN 

GOAL 5: SCIENCE 

Goal 5: Science 

BACKGROUND 
In the 2017 -2018 school year, we adopted Amplify Science as our K-8 science program. We chose 
this curriculum because it is fully NGSS aligned, created after the launch of NGSS, and has a great 
balance of hands-on and investigative science.  Teachers receive three days of professional 
development over the summer as well as weekly development throughout the school year through 
observations and internalization meetings.  

Goal 5: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at or 
above proficiency on the New York State science examination. 

METHOD 
The school administered the New York State Testing Program science assessment to students in 4th 
grade in spring 2019.  The school converted each student’s raw score to a performance level and a 
grade-specific scaled score.  The criterion for success on this measure requires students enrolled in 
at least their second year to score at proficiency.   
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
In our 4th grade cohort, 95% of our students enrolled in at least their second year performed at 
proficiency or higher, exceeding the goal by 20%. We de-tracked our science classes their year, so 
we did not have any 8th grade students take the Living Environment exam.  

 

Charter School Performance on 2018-19 State Science Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Grade 
Percent of Students at Proficiency of Students in At 

Least 2nd Year 
Percent Proficient Number Tested 

4 95% 56 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Performance on a Regents Science Exam 

Of 8th Grade All Students by Year 
 

 
Grade Year Regents 

Exam  

Percent 
Passing 

with a 65 

Number 
Tested  

8 2016-17 Living Env 85% 85 
8 2017-18 Living Env 72% 88 
8 2018-19 N/A   

 

 

Science Performance by Grade Level and School Year 

Grad
e 

Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year at 
Proficiency 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 
Percent 

Proficien
t 

Numbe
r 

Tested 

Percen
t 

Numbe
r 

Tested 

Percent 
Proficien

t 

Numbe
r 

Tested 
4 N/A N/A 98% 43 95% 56 
8 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

All N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
 

 

Goal 5: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year and performing at 
proficiency on the state science exam will be greater than that of all students in the same tested 
grades in the school district of comparison. 
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METHOD 
The school compares tested students enrolled in at least their second year to all tested students in 
the public school district of comparison.  Comparisons are between the results for each grade in 
which the school had tested students in at least their second year and the results for the respective 
grades in the school district of comparison.  Given the timing of the state’s release of district 
science data, the 2018-19 comparative data may not yet be available.  If not, schools should report 
comparison to the district’s 2017-18 data. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
In our 4th grade cohort, 95% of the students scored proficient or higher, which is 6% more than the 
district, exceeding our goal.  

 

2018-19 State Science Exam  
Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level 

 

Grade 

Percent of Students at Proficiency 
Charter School Students 

In At Least 2nd Year All District Students26 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

4 95% 56 89% 1,859 
8 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

All N/A N/A N/A N/A 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

Science Performance of Charter School and Local District 
by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Charter School Students at Proficiency and Enrolled in At Least their 
Second Year Compared to Local District Students 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 
Charter 
School  District  Charter 

School  District  Charter 
School  District  

4 N/A N/A 98% 88% 95% 56 
8 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

All N/A N/A 98% 88% N/A N/A 
 

SUMMARY OF THE SCIENCE GOAL 
 

Type Measure Outcome 

                                                        
26 This table uses the prior year’s results as 2018-19 district science scores are not yet available. 
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Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at 
least their second year will perform at or above proficiency 
on the New York State examination. 

95% 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of all tested students enrolled in at 
least their second year and performing at proficiency on the 
state exam will be greater than that of all students in the 
same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

95% vs 89% 

 [Write in optional measure here]  
 

ACTION PLAN 
 

HIGH SCHOOL SCIENCE 

Goal 5: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on a 
New York State Regents science exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 
New York State schools administer multiple high school science assessments; current Regent exams 
are Living Environment, Earth Science, Chemistry and Physics.  The school administered Living 
Environment, Earth Science, Chemistry and Physics.  It scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100; 
students must score at least 65 to pass.  This measure requires students in each Accountability 
Cohort to pass any one of the Regents science exams by their fourth year in the cohort.  Students 
may have taken a particular Regents science exam multiple times or have taken multiple science 
exams.  Students have until the summer of their fourth year to pass a science exam.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
In our 2015 cohort, 100% of our students scored a 65 or high on a science Regents exam, exceeding 
the goal by 25%.  We have exceeded this goal every year for the past three years.  

 

Science Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65  
by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort27  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Passing with 
a score of 65 

2013 2016-17 75 100% 
2014 2017-18 82 99% 
2015 2018-19 67 100% 

                                                        
27 Based on the highest score for each student on any science Regents exam 
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Goal 6: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent to students in the high school Total Cohort passing the Regents U.S. History 
exam with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

METHOD 
The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school high 
school Total Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison.  
Due to the availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and 
not the Accountability Cohort results.  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the 
summer of their fourth year, school presents the most recently available district results. 

RESULTS 
We do not have the comparable data to be able to evaluate the goal. Given the passing rate of the 
district in previous years, we do expect to exceed our goal.  

 

U.S. History Passing Rate  
of the High School Total Cohort by Charter School and School District  

 

Cohort 
 

Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 
Percent 
Passing 

Cohort 
Size 

Percent 
Passing 

Cohort 
Size 

2013 2016-17 96% 75 72% 2,698 
2014 2017-18 89% 82 73% 2,155 
2015 2018-19 96% 75 Not yet 

released 
 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

Goal 6: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on 
the New York State Regents Global History exam by the completion of their fourth year in the 
cohort. 

METHOD 
This measure requires students in each Accountability Cohort to pass the Global History exam by 
the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.  Students may have taken the exam multiple 
times, and had until the summer of their fourth year to pass it.  Once students pass it, performance 
on subsequent administrations of the same exam do not affect their status as passing.   
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RESULTS 
We do not yet have comparable results to be able to evaluate the goal. Given our performance this 
year and the district's passing rates in previous years, we expect to exceed our goal.  

Global History Passing Rate  
of the High School Total Cohort by Charter School and School District  

Cohort 
 

Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 
Percent 
Passing 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

Number 
in Cohort 

2013 2016-17 83% 75 70% 2,698 
2014 2017-18 94% 82 71% 2,087 
2015 2018-19 94% 82 Not yet 

released 
 



2018-19 ACCCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Coney Island Prep Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report                                       
Page 57 of 58 

GOAL 7: ESSA 

Goal 7: ESSA 

Goal 7: Absolute Measure 

Under the state’s ESSA accountability system, the school is in good standing:  the state has not 
identified the school for comprehensive or targeted improvement.   

METHOD 
Because all students are expected to meet the state's performance standards, the federal statute 
stipulates that various sub-populations and demographic categories of students among all tested 
students must meet the state standard in and of themselves aside from the overall school results.  
As New York State, like all states, is required to establish a specific system for making these 
determinations for its public schools, charter schools do not have latitude in establishing their own 
performance levels or criteria of success for meeting the ESSA accountability requirements.  Each 
year, the state issues School Report Cards that indicate a school’s status under the state 
accountability system. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
For the 2018 - 2019 school year, our ESSA is in good standing, which it has been for the past three 
years.  

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
 

Accountability Status by Year 
Year Status 

2016-17 Good Standing 
2017-18 Good Standing 
2018-19 Good Standing 
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APPENDIX A: OPTIONAL GOALS 
We have not set any optional goals at this time. 
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Entry	4	Expenditures	per	Child
Created:	07/24/2019	•	Last	updated:	07/31/2019

CONEY	ISLAND	PREPARATORY	PUBLIC	CHARTER	SCHOOLSection	Heading

Financial	Information	
This	information	is	required	of	ALL	charter	schools.	Provide	the	following	measures	of	fiscal
performance	of	the	charter	school	in	Appendix	B	(Total	Expenditures	and	Administrative	Expenditures
Per	Child):
	

1.	Total	Expenditures	Per	Child
To	calculate	‘Total	Expenditures	per	Child’	take	total	expenditures	(from	the	unaudited	2018-
19	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses)	and	divide	by	the	year	end	FTE	student	enrollment.
(Integers	Only.	No	dollar	signs	or	commas).

Note:		The	information	on	the	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses	on	pages	41–43	of	the
Audit	Guide	can	help	schools	locate	the	amounts	to	use	in	the	two	per	pupil
calculations:	Audit	Guide	available	within	the	portal	or	on	the	NYSED	website
at:	http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf.	

Line	1:	Total	Expenditures 19129307

Line	2:	Year	End	FTE	student	enrollment 1002

Line	3:	Divide	Line	1	by	Line	2 19091



2	/	2

2.	Administrative	Expenditures	per	Child

To	calculate	‘Administrative	Expenditures	per	Child'	To	calculate	“Administrative	Expenditures	per
Child”	first	add	together	the	following:

1.	Take	the	relevant	portion	from	the	‘personnel	services	cost’	row	and	the	‘management	and	general’
column	(from	the	unaudited	2018 19	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses)

2.	Any	contracted	administrative/management	fee	paid	to	other	organizations	or	corporations

3.	Take	the	total	from	above	and	divide	it	by	the	year end	FTE	enrollment.		The	relevant	portion	that	must
be	included	in	this	calculation	is	defined	as	follows:

Administrative	Expenditures:		Administration	and	management	of	the	charter	school	includes	the
activities	and	personnel	of	the	offices	of	the	chief	school	officer,	the	finance	or	business	offices,	school
operations	personnel,	data	management	and	reporting,	human	resources,	technology,	etc.	It	also
includes	those	administrative	and	management	services	provided	by	other	organizations	or	corporations
on	behalf	of	the	charter	school	for	which	the	charter	school	pays	a	fee	or	other	compensation.		Do	not
include	the	FTE	of	personnel	whose	role	is	to	directly	support	the	instructional	program.		

Notes:		
The	information	on	the	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses	on	pages	41–43	of	the	Audit	Guide
can	help	schools	locate	the	amounts	to	use	in	the	two	per	pupil	calculations:
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html.	
Employee	benefit	costs	or	expenditures	should	not	be	reported	in	the	above	calculations.

Line	1:	Relevant	Personnel	Services
Cost	(Row) 3446765

Line	2:	Management	and	General	Cost
(Column) 2703823

Line	3:	Sum	of	Line	1	and	Line	2 6150588

Line	5:	Divide	Line	3	by	the	Year	End
FTE	student	enrollment 6138

Thank	you.



Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

2018-19
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Friday, November 1, 2019
Date Submitted: Wednesday, October 30, 2019

KC Klegar

PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP
Gus Saliba

SUNY CHARTER SCHOOLS INSTITUTE - Reporting Requirements:

Online Portal: https://my.ep centernow.org/home.aspx
Required 8 Items:

1)
2)

3)
And, if applicable:

If not included , state the reason(s) below.  Or, if not applicable fill in "N/A"):
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Board of Trustees 
Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the School as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2019, Coney 
Island Preparatory Public Charter School adopted new accounting guidance resulting in a 
change in the manner in which it presents net assets and reports certain aspects of its financial 
statements. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.  

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as 
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 17 as required 
by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”), is presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 29, 2019, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance.

Harrison, New York
October 29, 2019



2019 2018
ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6,546,074$    5,145,804$    
Grants and contracts receivable 386,209         908,817         
Due from related party 1,371             220,087         
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 289,284         298,929         

Total Current Assets 7,222,938      6,573,637      

Property and equipment, net 2,400,353      2,839,125      
Restricted cash 75,079           75,027           
Security deposits 56,740           56,740           

9,755,110$    9,544,529$    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 626,629$       595,198$       
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 927,990         922,990         
Deferred rent 37,015           18,059           
Refundable advances 16,109           27,836           

Total Current Liabilities 1,607,743      1,564,083      

Deferred rent, net of current portion 143,580         180,595         
Total Liabilities 1,751,323      1,744,678      

Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 7,529,242      7,185,216      
With donor restrictions 474,545         614,635         

Total Net Assets 8,003,787      7,799,851      

9,755,110$    9,544,529$    

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Statements of Financial Position

June 30,

See notes to financial statements
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Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

OPERATING REVENUE
State and local per pupil operating revenue

General education 15,813,636$ -$                15,813,636$ 
Special education 3,085,621     -                  3,085,621     
Facilities 616,057        -                  616,057        

Federal grants 818,304        -                  818,304        
Federal E-rate and IDEA 304,328        -                  304,328        
State and city grants 72,113          -                  72,113          

Total Operating Revenue 20,710,059   -                  20,710,059   

EXPENSES
Program Services

Regular education 13,281,022   -                  13,281,022   
Special education 5,176,332     -                  5,176,332     

Total Program Services 18,457,354   -                  18,457,354   
Supporting Services

Management and general 2,126,302     -                  2,126,302     
Fundraising 18,458          -                  18,458          

Total Expenses 20,602,114   -                  20,602,114   

Surplus from Operations 107,945        -                  107,945        

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE
Donated services 36,750 -                  36,750          
Interest income 59,241          -                  59,241          
Net assets released from restrictions 140,090        (140,090)     -                   

Total Support and Other Revenue 236,081        (140,090)     95,991          

Change in Net Assets 344,026        (140,090)     203,936        

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 7,185,216     614,635      7,799,851     

End of year 7,529,242$   474,545$    8,003,787$   

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Statement of Activities 

See notes to financial statements
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Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

OPERATING REVENUE
State and local per pupil operating revenue

General education 14,863,991$ -$                14,863,991$ 
Special education 2,874,952     -                  2,874,952     
Facilities 598,113        -                  598,113        

Federal grants 966,622        -                  966,622        
Federal E-rate and IDEA 311,738        -                  311,738        
State and city grants 54,801          -                  54,801          

Total Revenue and Support 19,670,217   -                  19,670,217   

EXPENSES
Program Services

Regular education 12,705,817   -                  12,705,817   
Special education 4,274,338     -                  4,274,338     

Total Program Services 16,980,155   -                  16,980,155   
Supporting Services

Management and general 1,894,539     -                  1,894,539     
Fundraising 10,833          -                  10,833          

Total Expenses 18,885,527   -                  18,885,527   

Surplues from Operations 784,690        -                  784,690        

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE
Interest income 9,110            -                  9,110            
Net assets released from restrictions 140,090        (140,090)     -                   

Total Support and Other Revenue 149,200        (140,090)     9,110            

Change in Net Assets 933,890        (140,090)     793,800        

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 6,251,326     754,725      7,006,051     

End of year 7,185,216$   614,635$    7,799,851$   

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2018

See notes to financial statements
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No. of Regular Special Management
Positions Education Education Total and General Fundraising Total

Personnel Services Costs
Administrative staff personnel 56 3,276,488$  777,282$    4,053,770$   1,469,495$ 12,764$   5,536,029$  
Instructional personnel 112 4,936,467    2,424,450   7,360,917     -                 -              7,360,917    

Total Salaries and Staff 168 8,212,955    3,201,732   11,414,687   1,469,495   12,764     12,896,946  

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 1,662,728    648,196      2,310,924     268,639     2,333       2,581,896    
Retirement 238,173       92,849        331,022        42,615       370          374,007       
Legal service 28,733         11,306        40,039         3,482         22            43,543         
Accounting / audit services 33,822         13,185        47,007         6,052         53            53,112         
Other purchased services 200,806       78,282        279,088        23,873       207          303,168       
Building / facility costs 418,521       163,156      581,677        74,883       650          657,210       
Repairs and maintenance 202,371       78,892        281,263        36,209       315          317,787       
Insurance 107,659       41,970        149,629        19,263       167          169,059       
Utilities 32,495         12,668        45,163         5,814         50            51,027         
Supplies / materials 199,167       77,643        276,810        -                 -              276,810       
Equipment / furnishings 29,480         11,493        40,973         3,678         32            44,683         
Staff development 168,013       65,498        233,511        2,238         19            235,768       
Marketing / recruitment 69,004         26,900        95,904         12,346       107          108,357       
Technology 136,632       53,264        189,896        24,447       212          214,555       
Food service 384,058       149,721      533,779        -                 -              533,779       
Student services 408,402       159,211      567,613        -                 -              567,613       
Office expense 191,688       73,492        265,180        33,730       293          299,203       
Depreciation and amortization 479,582       186,960      666,542        85,809       745          753,096       
Other 76,733         29,914        106,647        13,729       119          120,495       

Total Expenses 13,281,022$ 5,176,332$ 18,457,354$ 2,126,302$ 18,458$   20,602,114$

Program Services Supporting Services

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2019

See notes to financial statements
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No. of Regular Special Management
Positions Education Education Total and General Fundraising Total

Personnel Services Costs
Administrative staff personnel 53 2,829,818$  713,431$    3,543,249$   1,291,254$ 7,383$     4,841,886$  
Instructional personnel 109 4,765,929    1,841,840   6,607,769     -                 -              6,607,769    

Total Salaries and Staff 162 7,595,747    2,555,271   10,151,018   1,291,254   7,383       11,449,655  

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 1,546,634    520,300      2,066,934     235,221     1,345       2,303,500    
Retirement 207,753       69,890        277,643        35,317       202          313,162       
Legal service 3,656           1,230          4,886           622            4             5,512           
Accounting / audit services 20,143         6,776          26,919         3,424         20            30,363         
Other purchased services 245,189       82,484        327,673        23,374       134          351,181       
Building / facility costs 439,367       147,806      587,173        74,691       427          662,291       
Repairs and maintenance 215,845       72,612        288,457        36,693       210          325,360       
Insurance 114,330       38,461        152,791        19,436       111          172,338       
Utilities 45,370         15,263        60,633         7,713         44            68,390         
Supplies / materials 269,257       90,580        359,837        -                 -              359,837       
Equipment / furnishings 19,128         6,435          25,563         1,573         9             27,145         
Staff development 261,597       88,003        349,600        13,898       79            363,577       
Marketing / recruitment 89,897         30,242        120,139        15,282       87            135,508       
Technology 137,088       46,117        183,205        23,304       133          206,642       
Food service 430,610       144,861      575,471        -                 -              575,471       
Student services 400,540       134,745      535,285        -                 -              535,285       
Office expense 106,639       35,874        142,513        18,128       104          160,745       
Depreciation and amortization 481,690       162,044      643,734        81,886       468          726,088       
Other 75,337         25,344        100,681        12,723       73            113,477       

Total Expenses 12,705,817$ 4,274,338$ 16,980,155$ 1,894,539$ 10,833$   18,885,527$

Program Services Supporting Services

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

See notes to financial statements
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2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 203,936$      793,800$      
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 

to net cash from operating activities
Deferred rent (18,059)         (1,122)           
Depreciation and amortization 753,096        726,088        
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
   Grants and contracts receivable 522,608        (370,899)       
   Due from related party 218,716        (216,910)       
   Prepaid expenses and other current assets 9,645            (37,373)         
   Accounts payable and accrued expenses 31,431          68,738          
   Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 5,000            39,307          
   Refundable advances (11,727)         1,250            

  Net Cash from Operating Activities 1,714,646     1,002,879     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment (314,324)       (314,907)       
Restricted cash (52)                (4,610)           

  Net Cash from Investing Activities (314,376)       (319,517)       

  Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,400,270     683,362        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year 5,145,804     4,462,442     

End of year 6,546,074$   5,145,804$   

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30,

See notes to financial statements
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Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018

9

1. Organization and Tax Status 

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-
profit educational corporation that operates as a charter school in the borough of Brooklyn, 
New York. On February 12, 2009, the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New 
York (“Board of Regents”) for and on behalf of the State Education Department granted the 
School a provisional charter valid for a term of five years from the effective date of December 
16, 2008 and renewable upon expiration by the Board of Regents. The Board of Regents 
approved and issued several renewals to the School’s charter expiring June 30, 2023. The 
School’s mission is that students will develop the academic skills and character necessary for 
success in selective colleges and universities, and the career of their choice. Students will learn 
through a rigorous academic program, with a strong focus on writing, in a supportive and 
structured school community. Classes commenced in Brooklyn, New York, in August 2009 and 
the School provided education to approximately 1,000 students in kindergarten through twelfth 
grade during the 2018-2019 academic year.

During 2017, the School applied to change its authorizer and transfer its charter from The New 
York City Department of Education to the Charter Schools Institute of the State University of 
New York (“SUNY”). On October 11, 2017, SUNY approved the transfer of the School’s charter 
effective for the 2017-2018 school year.  

The School retains an outside vendor to provide meals for students in which the School 
receives reimbursement from the New York State Education Department. The New York City 
Department of Education provides Metrocards to a majority of the School’s students.

Except for taxes that may be due for unrelated business income, the School is exempt from 
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from state and 
local income taxes under comparable laws.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Change in Accounting Principle

On July 1, 2018, the School adopted new guidance regarding the Presentation of Financial 
Statements for Not-for Profit Entities. This guidance requires the School to collapse the three-
category (unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted) classification of net 
assets into two categories: with donor restrictions and without donor restrictions. In addition, the 
new guidance requires the School to make certain expanded disclosures relating to the liquidity 
of financial assets, and expenses both by their natural and functional classification in one 
location in the financial statements. As a result of implementing this standard, prior year 
amounts for unrestricted net assets were reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.



Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Net Assets Presentation

Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into net 
asset categories established according to nature and purpose as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions - consist of resources available for the general 
support of the School’s operations. Net assets without donor restrictions may be used at 
the discretion of the School’s management and/or the Board of Trustees.

Net assets with donor restrictions – represents amounts restricted by donors for specific 
activities of the School or to be used at a future date. The School records contributions as 
net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit their 
use either through purpose or time restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, 
when a time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is fulfilled, net assets with donor 
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the 
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances held in bank accounts and highly liquid 
debt instruments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase.

Restricted Cash

Under the provisions of its charter, the School established an escrow account to pay for 
legal and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution, should it occur.

Property and Equipment

The School follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment 
with costs in excess of $1,000 and a useful life in excess of one year. Leasehold 
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease, inclusive of all 
renewal periods, which are reasonably assured, or the estimated useful life of the asset. 
Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Minor 
costs of maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. All property and equipment 
purchased with government funding is capitalized, unless the government agency retains 
legal title to such assets, in which case it is expensed as incurred.

Depreciation and amortization is recognized on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of such assets as follows: 

Computers and equipment                                           3 to 5 years
Furniture and fixtures                                                    7 years
Software                                                                        3 years



Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly 
changes or another indicator of possible impairment is identified. If the carrying amount of the 
asset is not recoverable, the asset is written down to its fair value. There were no asset 
impairments for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Refundable Advances

The School records certain government operating revenue as refundable advances until 
related services are performed, at which time they are recognized as revenue.

Revenue and Support

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and 
based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are recorded 
when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency.

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that is, in 
substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as net assets 
with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations. Restricted contributions and 
grants that are made to support the School’s current year activities are recorded as net assets 
without donor restrictions. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their 
estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with U.S. GAAP if the services 
create or enhance non-financial assets, require specialized skills, are performed by people with 
those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the School, and are measureable.

Functional Expense Allocation

The majority of expenses can generally be directly identified with the program or supporting 
service to which they relate and are charged accordingly. Other expenses by function have 
been allocated among program and supporting services classifications on the basis of periodic 
time and expense studies and other basis as determined by management of the School to be 
appropriate.

Marketing and Recruitment

Marketing and recruitment costs are expensed as incurred. Marketing and recruitment costs for 
the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $108,357 and $135,508



Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

The School recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely 
than not to be sustained. Management has determined that the School had no uncertain tax 
positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. The School is no 
longer subject to examinations by the applicable taxing jurisdictions for years prior to June 30, 
2016.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2018 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 
2019 presentation.

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the 
financial statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, 
which date is October 29, 2019.

3. Grants and Contracts Receivable

Grants and contracts receivable consist of federal, state, and city entitlements and grants. The 
School expects to collect these receivables within one year, and has not provided an allowance 
for doubtful accounts.

4. Related Party Transactions (not disclosed elsewhere)

The School is an affiliate of Coney Island Prep Builders, Inc. (“Builders”), a New York State, 
not-for-profit corporation with common management and board of trustees. Builders supports 
the School through financial, fundraising, and development efforts.

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the School charged Builders $199,194 and 
$217,660 for salary and benefits of two shared employees, and $1,371 and $2,427 for net 
operating expenses. 

Net balance due from Builders at June 30, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $1,371 and $220,087. 



Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School
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13

5. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30:

2019 2018
Computers and equipment 1,642,708$ 1,514,685$ 
Furniture and fixtures 669,311 657,453
Software 60,009 51,879
Leasehold improvements 4,080,361   3,914,048   

6,452,389   6,138,065   
Accumulated depreciation
   and amortization (4,052,036)  (3,298,940)  

2,400,353$ 2,839,125$ 

6. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use within one year of the statement of financial position date, are comprised of 
the following at June 30, 2019:

Cash and cash equivalents 6,546,074$ 
Grants and contracts receivable 386,209      
Due from related party 1,371          

6,933,654$ 

As part of the School’s liquidity management plan, the status of grants and contracts receivable 
is monitored regularly and any excess cash is held in savings accounts and other liquid 
instruments until it is required for operational use. Net assets with donor restrictions of 
$474,545 represent the net book value of leasehold improvements at June 30, 2019. This 
amount will be released from restriction at the same rate as recognition of amortization 
expense (see Note 7).

7. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2019 and 2018 consist of $474,545 and 
$614,635, restricted for facility renovation. These costs are classified as leasehold 
improvements under property and equipment on the School’s statements of financial position.
Net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions as 
amortization expense is recognized over the life of the leasehold improvements. During the 
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, $140,090 was released from restrictions.
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8. Employee Benefit Plan

The School maintains a pension plan qualified under Internal Revenue Code 403(b) for the 
benefit of its eligible employees. Under the plan, the School provided matching contributions up 
to 5% of annual compensation. The amount charged for matching contributions to this plan 
amounted to $367,823 and $307,620 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

9. Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit and market 
risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions, which 
from time to time may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) limit. The 
School does not believe that a significant risk of loss due to the failure of a financial institution 
presently exists. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, approximately $6,121,000 and $4,720,000 of 
cash was maintained with two institutions in excess of FDIC limits.

10. Concentration of Revenue and Support

The School receives a substantial portion of its revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the School received 
approximately 94% and 93% of its total revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or eliminating 
these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected.

11. Donated Services 

Legal services were provided to the School at no charge.  The value of these services meets 
the criteria for recognition in the financial statements and was recorded at a fair value of 
$36,750 and $0 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. The value of these services is 
allocated to management and general services in the accompanying statements of activities 
and functional expenses.

12. Commitments

Elementary School Facility

The School began sharing space with a New York City public school in July 2014. The School 
is not responsible for rent, real estate taxes, utilities, custodial services, maintenance, and 
school safety services other than security related to the School’s programs that take place 
outside the district’s school day. The School was unable to determine a value for the 
contributed space and related services and did not record any value for use of donated facilities 
or services.
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12. Commitments (continued)

Middle School Facility

The School began sharing space with a New York City public school in July 2011. The School 
is not responsible for rent, real estate taxes, utilities, custodial services, maintenance, and 
school safety services other than security related to the School’s programs that take place 
outside the district’s school day. The School was unable to determine a value for the 
contributed space and related services and did not record any value for use of donated facilities 
or services.

High School Facility

On November 19, 2012, the School entered into a lease agreement with The Roman Catholic 
Church of Saints Simon and Jude for the rental of space of a building located in Brooklyn, New 
York. The lease term commenced on April 1, 2013 and expires on July 31, 2023. The School is 
responsible for utilities, insurance, custodial services, and maintenance. 

High School Facility (continued)

The future minimum lease payments under this operating lease are as follows for the years 
ending June 30:

2020 634,550$      
2021 653,586        
2022 673,194        
2023 56,236          

2,017,566$   

Central Office

On June 24, 2016, the School entered into a lease agreement with APX, LLC for the rental of 
office space in Brooklyn, New York. The lease term commenced on August 1, 2016 and 
expires on July 31, 2022. The lease was amended on December 21, 2016, to abate rent for 
November 2016 through February 2017 due to significant delays in obtaining a certificate of 
occupancy by the landlord. The School is responsible for utilities, insurance, custodial services, 
and maintenance.

The future minimum lease payments under this operating lease are as follows for the years 
ending June 30:

2020 66,747$        
2021 68,082          
2022 5,683            

140,512$      
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12. Commitments (continued)

The School recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Rent 
expense in excess of payments is recorded as deferred rent in the accompanying statements 
of financial position. Rent expense under all operating leases amounted to $657,210 and 
$662,291 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Leased Equipment

The School leases office equipment under one-year purchase orders, pursuant to contract 
with The New York City Department of Education. There are no future minimum obligations 
under these leases. Equipment rental expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
amounted to $40,653 and $48,277. 

13. Contingency

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits 
might result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the 
opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the 
accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the 
accompanying financial statements for such potential claims.

* * * * *
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Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Federal Pass-Through Total
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Entity Identifying Provided to Federal 
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Pass-through New York State Education Department:
 Child Nutrition Cluster:

School Breakfast Program 10.553 332100860949 -$                     81,931$     
National School Lunch Program 10.555 332100860949 -                       337,817     

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture -                       419,748     

U.S. Department of Education
Pass-through New York State Education Department:

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 0021194595 -                       332,893     
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants
  (Formerly Improving Teacher Quality State Grants) 84.367 0147194595 -                       39,060       
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 84.424 0204194595 -                       26,603       

Total U.S. Department of Education -                       398,556     

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards -$                     818,304$   

See independent auditors’ report and notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes 
the federal award activity of Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School (the 
“School”), under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform 
Guidance”). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of 
the School, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in 
net assets or cash flows of the School.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement.

3. Indirect Cost Rate

The School has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed 
under the Uniform Guidance 



Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With 

Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Trustees 
Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School (the “School”), which comprise 
the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914.381.8900 I Fax: 914.381.8910 I www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.



Board of Trustees
Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School
Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose.

Harrison, New York
October 29, 2019



Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal 
Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Trustees
Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School’s (the “School”) compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of the School’s major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2019. The School’s major federal programs are identified in the summary 
of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(“Uniform Guidance”). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
the School’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the 
School’s compliance.

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914.381.8900 I Fax: 914.381.8910 I www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.



Board of Trustees
Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the School’s internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over 
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Harrison, New York
October 29, 2019
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Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements 
Type of report the auditor issued on whether the 

financial statements audited were prepared in
accordance with U.S. GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?           yes   X   no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?           yes    X   none reported

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?         yes    X   no

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?           yes    X   no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?       yes    X   none reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?          yes    X no

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number(s)              Name of Federal Program or Cluster             

84.010 Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
  between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?    X   yes      no

Section II – Financial Statement Findings

During our audit, we noted no material findings for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

During our audit, we noted no material instance of noncompliance and none of the costs 
reported in the federal financially assisted programs are questioned or recommended to be 
disallowed.

Section IV – Prior Year Findings

There were no prior year audit findings



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School 
 
Auditors’ Communication on Internal Control  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Coney Island Preparatory Public 
Charter School (the “School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal control 
over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies 
have been identified. 
 
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, as 
defined above. 
 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, 
the Board of Trustees, the Charter Schools Institute of the State University of New York, the State 
Education Department of the State University of New York, and others within the School, and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

 
 
Harrison, New York 
October 29, 2019 
 
 
 
 
PKF O CONNOR DAV ES  LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue  Harrison  NY 10528    Tel  914 381 8900    Fax  914 381 8910    www pkfod com  

PKF O Connor Davies  LLP is a member firm of the PKF nternational Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or 
liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms  
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Board of Trustees 
Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the School as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2019, Coney 
Island Preparatory Public Charter School adopted new accounting guidance resulting in a 
change in the manner in which it presents net assets and reports certain aspects of its financial 
statements. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.  

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as 
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 17 as required 
by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”), is presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 29, 2019, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance.

Harrison, New York
October 29, 2019



2019 2018
ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6,546,074$    5,145,804$    
Grants and contracts receivable 386,209         908,817         
Due from related party 1,371             220,087         
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 289,284         298,929         

Total Current Assets 7,222,938      6,573,637      

Property and equipment, net 2,400,353      2,839,125      
Restricted cash 75,079           75,027           
Security deposits 56,740           56,740           

9,755,110$    9,544,529$    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 626,629$       595,198$       
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 927,990         922,990         
Deferred rent 37,015           18,059           
Refundable advances 16,109           27,836           

Total Current Liabilities 1,607,743      1,564,083      

Deferred rent, net of current portion 143,580         180,595         
Total Liabilities 1,751,323      1,744,678      

Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 7,529,242      7,185,216      
With donor restrictions 474,545         614,635         

Total Net Assets 8,003,787      7,799,851      

9,755,110$    9,544,529$    

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Statements of Financial Position

June 30,

See notes to financial statements
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Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

OPERATING REVENUE
State and local per pupil operating revenue

General education 15,813,636$ -$                15,813,636$ 
Special education 3,085,621     -                  3,085,621     
Facilities 616,057        -                  616,057        

Federal grants 818,304        -                  818,304        
Federal E-rate and IDEA 304,328        -                  304,328        
State and city grants 72,113          -                  72,113          

Total Operating Revenue 20,710,059   -                  20,710,059   

EXPENSES
Program Services

Regular education 13,281,022   -                  13,281,022   
Special education 5,176,332     -                  5,176,332     

Total Program Services 18,457,354   -                  18,457,354   
Supporting Services

Management and general 2,126,302     -                  2,126,302     
Fundraising 18,458          -                  18,458          

Total Expenses 20,602,114   -                  20,602,114   

Surplus from Operations 107,945        -                  107,945        

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE
Donated services 36,750 -                  36,750          
Interest income 59,241          -                  59,241          
Net assets released from restrictions 140,090        (140,090)     -                   

Total Support and Other Revenue 236,081        (140,090)     95,991          

Change in Net Assets 344,026        (140,090)     203,936        

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 7,185,216     614,635      7,799,851     

End of year 7,529,242$   474,545$    8,003,787$   

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Statement of Activities 

See notes to financial statements
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Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

OPERATING REVENUE
State and local per pupil operating revenue

General education 14,863,991$ -$                14,863,991$ 
Special education 2,874,952     -                  2,874,952     
Facilities 598,113        -                  598,113        

Federal grants 966,622        -                  966,622        
Federal E-rate and IDEA 311,738        -                  311,738        
State and city grants 54,801          -                  54,801          

Total Revenue and Support 19,670,217   -                  19,670,217   

EXPENSES
Program Services

Regular education 12,705,817   -                  12,705,817   
Special education 4,274,338     -                  4,274,338     

Total Program Services 16,980,155   -                  16,980,155   
Supporting Services

Management and general 1,894,539     -                  1,894,539     
Fundraising 10,833          -                  10,833          

Total Expenses 18,885,527   -                  18,885,527   

Surplues from Operations 784,690        -                  784,690        

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE
Interest income 9,110            -                  9,110            
Net assets released from restrictions 140,090        (140,090)     -                   

Total Support and Other Revenue 149,200        (140,090)     9,110            

Change in Net Assets 933,890        (140,090)     793,800        

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 6,251,326     754,725      7,006,051     

End of year 7,185,216$   614,635$    7,799,851$   

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2018

See notes to financial statements
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No. of Regular Special Management
Positions Education Education Total and General Fundraising Total

Personnel Services Costs
Administrative staff personnel 56 3,276,488$  777,282$    4,053,770$   1,469,495$ 12,764$   5,536,029$  
Instructional personnel 112 4,936,467    2,424,450   7,360,917     -                 -              7,360,917    

Total Salaries and Staff 168 8,212,955    3,201,732   11,414,687   1,469,495   12,764     12,896,946  

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 1,662,728    648,196      2,310,924     268,639     2,333       2,581,896    
Retirement 238,173       92,849        331,022        42,615       370          374,007       
Legal service 28,733         11,306        40,039         3,482         22            43,543         
Accounting / audit services 33,822         13,185        47,007         6,052         53            53,112         
Other purchased services 200,806       78,282        279,088        23,873       207          303,168       
Building / facility costs 418,521       163,156      581,677        74,883       650          657,210       
Repairs and maintenance 202,371       78,892        281,263        36,209       315          317,787       
Insurance 107,659       41,970        149,629        19,263       167          169,059       
Utilities 32,495         12,668        45,163         5,814         50            51,027         
Supplies / materials 199,167       77,643        276,810        -                 -              276,810       
Equipment / furnishings 29,480         11,493        40,973         3,678         32            44,683         
Staff development 168,013       65,498        233,511        2,238         19            235,768       
Marketing / recruitment 69,004         26,900        95,904         12,346       107          108,357       
Technology 136,632       53,264        189,896        24,447       212          214,555       
Food service 384,058       149,721      533,779        -                 -              533,779       
Student services 408,402       159,211      567,613        -                 -              567,613       
Office expense 191,688       73,492        265,180        33,730       293          299,203       
Depreciation and amortization 479,582       186,960      666,542        85,809       745          753,096       
Other 76,733         29,914        106,647        13,729       119          120,495       

Total Expenses 13,281,022$ 5,176,332$ 18,457,354$ 2,126,302$ 18,458$   20,602,114$

Program Services Supporting Services

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2019

See notes to financial statements
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No. of Regular Special Management
Positions Education Education Total and General Fundraising Total

Personnel Services Costs
Administrative staff personnel 53 2,829,818$  713,431$    3,543,249$   1,291,254$ 7,383$     4,841,886$  
Instructional personnel 109 4,765,929    1,841,840   6,607,769     -                 -              6,607,769    

Total Salaries and Staff 162 7,595,747    2,555,271   10,151,018   1,291,254   7,383       11,449,655  

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 1,546,634    520,300      2,066,934     235,221     1,345       2,303,500    
Retirement 207,753       69,890        277,643        35,317       202          313,162       
Legal service 3,656           1,230          4,886           622            4             5,512           
Accounting / audit services 20,143         6,776          26,919         3,424         20            30,363         
Other purchased services 245,189       82,484        327,673        23,374       134          351,181       
Building / facility costs 439,367       147,806      587,173        74,691       427          662,291       
Repairs and maintenance 215,845       72,612        288,457        36,693       210          325,360       
Insurance 114,330       38,461        152,791        19,436       111          172,338       
Utilities 45,370         15,263        60,633         7,713         44            68,390         
Supplies / materials 269,257       90,580        359,837        -                 -              359,837       
Equipment / furnishings 19,128         6,435          25,563         1,573         9             27,145         
Staff development 261,597       88,003        349,600        13,898       79            363,577       
Marketing / recruitment 89,897         30,242        120,139        15,282       87            135,508       
Technology 137,088       46,117        183,205        23,304       133          206,642       
Food service 430,610       144,861      575,471        -                 -              575,471       
Student services 400,540       134,745      535,285        -                 -              535,285       
Office expense 106,639       35,874        142,513        18,128       104          160,745       
Depreciation and amortization 481,690       162,044      643,734        81,886       468          726,088       
Other 75,337         25,344        100,681        12,723       73            113,477       

Total Expenses 12,705,817$ 4,274,338$ 16,980,155$ 1,894,539$ 10,833$   18,885,527$

Program Services Supporting Services

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

See notes to financial statements
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2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 203,936$      793,800$      
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 

to net cash from operating activities
Deferred rent (18,059)         (1,122)           
Depreciation and amortization 753,096        726,088        
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
   Grants and contracts receivable 522,608        (370,899)       
   Due from related party 218,716        (216,910)       
   Prepaid expenses and other current assets 9,645            (37,373)         
   Accounts payable and accrued expenses 31,431          68,738          
   Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 5,000            39,307          
   Refundable advances (11,727)         1,250            

  Net Cash from Operating Activities 1,714,646     1,002,879     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment (314,324)       (314,907)       
Restricted cash (52)                (4,610)           

  Net Cash from Investing Activities (314,376)       (319,517)       

  Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,400,270     683,362        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year 5,145,804     4,462,442     

End of year 6,546,074$   5,145,804$   

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30,

See notes to financial statements
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Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
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1. Organization and Tax Status 

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-
profit educational corporation that operates as a charter school in the borough of Brooklyn, 
New York. On February 12, 2009, the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New 
York (“Board of Regents”) for and on behalf of the State Education Department granted the 
School a provisional charter valid for a term of five years from the effective date of December 
16, 2008 and renewable upon expiration by the Board of Regents. The Board of Regents 
approved and issued several renewals to the School’s charter expiring June 30, 2023. The 
School’s mission is that students will develop the academic skills and character necessary for 
success in selective colleges and universities, and the career of their choice. Students will learn 
through a rigorous academic program, with a strong focus on writing, in a supportive and 
structured school community. Classes commenced in Brooklyn, New York, in August 2009 and 
the School provided education to approximately 1,000 students in kindergarten through twelfth 
grade during the 2018-2019 academic year.

During 2017, the School applied to change its authorizer and transfer its charter from The New 
York City Department of Education to the Charter Schools Institute of the State University of 
New York (“SUNY”). On October 11, 2017, SUNY approved the transfer of the School’s charter 
effective for the 2017-2018 school year.  

The School retains an outside vendor to provide meals for students in which the School 
receives reimbursement from the New York State Education Department. The New York City 
Department of Education provides Metrocards to a majority of the School’s students.

Except for taxes that may be due for unrelated business income, the School is exempt from 
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from state and 
local income taxes under comparable laws.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Change in Accounting Principle

On July 1, 2018, the School adopted new guidance regarding the Presentation of Financial 
Statements for Not-for Profit Entities. This guidance requires the School to collapse the three-
category (unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted) classification of net 
assets into two categories: with donor restrictions and without donor restrictions. In addition, the 
new guidance requires the School to make certain expanded disclosures relating to the liquidity 
of financial assets, and expenses both by their natural and functional classification in one 
location in the financial statements. As a result of implementing this standard, prior year 
amounts for unrestricted net assets were reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.



Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Net Assets Presentation

Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into net 
asset categories established according to nature and purpose as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions - consist of resources available for the general 
support of the School’s operations. Net assets without donor restrictions may be used at 
the discretion of the School’s management and/or the Board of Trustees.

Net assets with donor restrictions – represents amounts restricted by donors for specific 
activities of the School or to be used at a future date. The School records contributions as 
net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit their 
use either through purpose or time restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, 
when a time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is fulfilled, net assets with donor 
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the 
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances held in bank accounts and highly liquid 
debt instruments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase.

Restricted Cash

Under the provisions of its charter, the School established an escrow account to pay for 
legal and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution, should it occur.

Property and Equipment

The School follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment 
with costs in excess of $1,000 and a useful life in excess of one year. Leasehold 
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease, inclusive of all 
renewal periods, which are reasonably assured, or the estimated useful life of the asset. 
Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Minor 
costs of maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. All property and equipment 
purchased with government funding is capitalized, unless the government agency retains 
legal title to such assets, in which case it is expensed as incurred.

Depreciation and amortization is recognized on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of such assets as follows: 

Computers and equipment                                           3 to 5 years
Furniture and fixtures                                                    7 years
Software                                                                        3 years



Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly 
changes or another indicator of possible impairment is identified. If the carrying amount of the 
asset is not recoverable, the asset is written down to its fair value. There were no asset 
impairments for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Refundable Advances

The School records certain government operating revenue as refundable advances until 
related services are performed, at which time they are recognized as revenue.

Revenue and Support

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and 
based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are recorded 
when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency.

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that is, in 
substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as net assets 
with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations. Restricted contributions and 
grants that are made to support the School’s current year activities are recorded as net assets 
without donor restrictions. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their 
estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with U.S. GAAP if the services 
create or enhance non-financial assets, require specialized skills, are performed by people with 
those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the School, and are measureable.

Functional Expense Allocation

The majority of expenses can generally be directly identified with the program or supporting 
service to which they relate and are charged accordingly. Other expenses by function have 
been allocated among program and supporting services classifications on the basis of periodic 
time and expense studies and other basis as determined by management of the School to be 
appropriate.

Marketing and Recruitment

Marketing and recruitment costs are expensed as incurred. Marketing and recruitment costs for 
the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $108,357 and $135,508
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

The School recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely 
than not to be sustained. Management has determined that the School had no uncertain tax 
positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. The School is no 
longer subject to examinations by the applicable taxing jurisdictions for years prior to June 30, 
2016.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2018 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 
2019 presentation.

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the 
financial statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, 
which date is October 29, 2019.

3. Grants and Contracts Receivable

Grants and contracts receivable consist of federal, state, and city entitlements and grants. The 
School expects to collect these receivables within one year, and has not provided an allowance 
for doubtful accounts.

4. Related Party Transactions (not disclosed elsewhere)

The School is an affiliate of Coney Island Prep Builders, Inc. (“Builders”), a New York State, 
not-for-profit corporation with common management and board of trustees. Builders supports 
the School through financial, fundraising, and development efforts.

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the School charged Builders $199,194 and 
$217,660 for salary and benefits of two shared employees, and $1,371 and $2,427 for net 
operating expenses. 

Net balance due from Builders at June 30, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $1,371 and $220,087. 
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5. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30:

2019 2018
Computers and equipment 1,642,708$ 1,514,685$ 
Furniture and fixtures 669,311 657,453
Software 60,009 51,879
Leasehold improvements 4,080,361   3,914,048   

6,452,389   6,138,065   
Accumulated depreciation
   and amortization (4,052,036)  (3,298,940)  

2,400,353$ 2,839,125$ 

6. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use within one year of the statement of financial position date, are comprised of 
the following at June 30, 2019:

Cash and cash equivalents 6,546,074$ 
Grants and contracts receivable 386,209      
Due from related party 1,371          

6,933,654$ 

As part of the School’s liquidity management plan, the status of grants and contracts receivable 
is monitored regularly and any excess cash is held in savings accounts and other liquid 
instruments until it is required for operational use. Net assets with donor restrictions of 
$474,545 represent the net book value of leasehold improvements at June 30, 2019. This 
amount will be released from restriction at the same rate as recognition of amortization 
expense (see Note 7).

7. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2019 and 2018 consist of $474,545 and 
$614,635, restricted for facility renovation. These costs are classified as leasehold 
improvements under property and equipment on the School’s statements of financial position.
Net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions as 
amortization expense is recognized over the life of the leasehold improvements. During the 
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, $140,090 was released from restrictions.
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8. Employee Benefit Plan

The School maintains a pension plan qualified under Internal Revenue Code 403(b) for the 
benefit of its eligible employees. Under the plan, the School provided matching contributions up 
to 5% of annual compensation. The amount charged for matching contributions to this plan 
amounted to $367,823 and $307,620 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

9. Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit and market 
risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions, which 
from time to time may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) limit. The 
School does not believe that a significant risk of loss due to the failure of a financial institution 
presently exists. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, approximately $6,121,000 and $4,720,000 of 
cash was maintained with two institutions in excess of FDIC limits.

10. Concentration of Revenue and Support

The School receives a substantial portion of its revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the School received 
approximately 94% and 93% of its total revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or eliminating 
these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected.

11. Donated Services 

Legal services were provided to the School at no charge.  The value of these services meets 
the criteria for recognition in the financial statements and was recorded at a fair value of 
$36,750 and $0 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. The value of these services is 
allocated to management and general services in the accompanying statements of activities 
and functional expenses.

12. Commitments

Elementary School Facility

The School began sharing space with a New York City public school in July 2014. The School 
is not responsible for rent, real estate taxes, utilities, custodial services, maintenance, and 
school safety services other than security related to the School’s programs that take place 
outside the district’s school day. The School was unable to determine a value for the 
contributed space and related services and did not record any value for use of donated facilities 
or services.
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12. Commitments (continued)

Middle School Facility

The School began sharing space with a New York City public school in July 2011. The School 
is not responsible for rent, real estate taxes, utilities, custodial services, maintenance, and 
school safety services other than security related to the School’s programs that take place 
outside the district’s school day. The School was unable to determine a value for the 
contributed space and related services and did not record any value for use of donated facilities 
or services.

High School Facility

On November 19, 2012, the School entered into a lease agreement with The Roman Catholic 
Church of Saints Simon and Jude for the rental of space of a building located in Brooklyn, New 
York. The lease term commenced on April 1, 2013 and expires on July 31, 2023. The School is 
responsible for utilities, insurance, custodial services, and maintenance. 

High School Facility (continued)

The future minimum lease payments under this operating lease are as follows for the years 
ending June 30:

2020 634,550$      
2021 653,586        
2022 673,194        
2023 56,236          

2,017,566$   

Central Office

On June 24, 2016, the School entered into a lease agreement with APX, LLC for the rental of 
office space in Brooklyn, New York. The lease term commenced on August 1, 2016 and 
expires on July 31, 2022. The lease was amended on December 21, 2016, to abate rent for 
November 2016 through February 2017 due to significant delays in obtaining a certificate of 
occupancy by the landlord. The School is responsible for utilities, insurance, custodial services, 
and maintenance.

The future minimum lease payments under this operating lease are as follows for the years 
ending June 30:

2020 66,747$        
2021 68,082          
2022 5,683            

140,512$      
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12. Commitments (continued)

The School recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Rent 
expense in excess of payments is recorded as deferred rent in the accompanying statements 
of financial position. Rent expense under all operating leases amounted to $657,210 and 
$662,291 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Leased Equipment

The School leases office equipment under one-year purchase orders, pursuant to contract 
with The New York City Department of Education. There are no future minimum obligations 
under these leases. Equipment rental expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
amounted to $40,653 and $48,277. 

13. Contingency

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits 
might result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the 
opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the 
accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the 
accompanying financial statements for such potential claims.

* * * * *
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Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Federal Pass-Through Total
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Entity Identifying Provided to Federal 
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Pass-through New York State Education Department:
 Child Nutrition Cluster:

School Breakfast Program 10.553 332100860949 -$                     81,931$     
National School Lunch Program 10.555 332100860949 -                       337,817     

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture -                       419,748     

U.S. Department of Education
Pass-through New York State Education Department:

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 0021194595 -                       332,893     
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants
  (Formerly Improving Teacher Quality State Grants) 84.367 0147194595 -                       39,060       
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 84.424 0204194595 -                       26,603       

Total U.S. Department of Education -                       398,556     

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards -$                     818,304$   

See independent auditors’ report and notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes 
the federal award activity of Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School (the 
“School”), under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform 
Guidance”). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of 
the School, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in 
net assets or cash flows of the School.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement.

3. Indirect Cost Rate

The School has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed 
under the Uniform Guidance 



Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With 

Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Trustees 
Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School (the “School”), which comprise 
the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914.381.8900 I Fax: 914.381.8910 I www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.



Board of Trustees
Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School
Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose.

Harrison, New York
October 29, 2019



Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal 
Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Trustees
Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School’s (the “School”) compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of the School’s major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2019. The School’s major federal programs are identified in the summary 
of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(“Uniform Guidance”). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
the School’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the 
School’s compliance.

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914.381.8900 I Fax: 914.381.8910 I www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.



Board of Trustees
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the School’s internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over 
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Harrison, New York
October 29, 2019



Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2019

23

Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements 
Type of report the auditor issued on whether the 

financial statements audited were prepared in
accordance with U.S. GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?           yes   X   no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?           yes    X   none reported

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?         yes    X   no

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?           yes    X   no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?       yes    X   none reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?          yes    X no

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number(s)              Name of Federal Program or Cluster             

84.010 Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
  between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?    X   yes      no

Section II – Financial Statement Findings

During our audit, we noted no material findings for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

During our audit, we noted no material instance of noncompliance and none of the costs 
reported in the federal financially assisted programs are questioned or recommended to be 
disallowed.

Section IV – Prior Year Findings

There were no prior year audit findings



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School 
 
Auditors’ Communication on Internal Control  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Coney Island Preparatory Public 
Charter School (the “School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal control 
over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies 
have been identified. 
 
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, as 
defined above. 
 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, 
the Board of Trustees, the Charter Schools Institute of the State University of New York, the State 
Education Department of the State University of New York, and others within the School, and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

 
 
Harrison, New York 
October 29, 2019 
 
 
 
 
PKF O CONNOR DAV ES  LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue  Harrison  NY 10528    Tel  914 381 8900    Fax  914 381 8910    www pkfod com  

PKF O Connor Davies  LLP is a member firm of the PKF nternational Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or 
liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms  
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SCHOOL
Name:

CONTACT INFORMATION
Contact Name:
Contact Title:
Contact Email:
Contact Phone:

REPORT PERIOD
Current Academic Year: 2019-20
Prior Academic Year: 2018-19

ANNUAL BUDGET & QUARTERLY REPORT TEMPLATE

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Coney Island Preparatory Public Charter School

Leslie-Bernard Joseph
Chief Executive Officer
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GRADES K 1
INITIAL BUDGETED ENROLLMENT 62 62
TOTAL ENROLLMENT = 1003

  
  

PRIOR YEAR
  

    
ACTUAL QUAR  

Original
NUMBER OF SCHOOL DISTRICTS ENROLLED: 1 1
NUMBER OF STUDENTS ENROLLED: 1003 1003

PRIOR YEAR  
2018-19 QUAR  

PRIMARY/OTHER DISTRICT NAME(S)
Actual 

Enrollment

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment
PRIMARY District NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 1003 1003
SECONDARY District (Select from drop-down list) →

      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      

*NOTE:  If the                
COMPLETELY                 
must be comp       
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PRIOR YEAR  
2018-19 QUAR  

PRIMARY/OTHER DISTRICT NAME(S)
Actual 

Enrollment

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment
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CONEY ISLAND PREPARATORY PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL
2019-20

ENROLLMENT BY GRADES

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
62 62 62 90 90 90 90

ENROLLMENT BY DISTRICT
  

 ANNUAL BUDGET
TOTAL DISTRICTS/ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 

  
  

RTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4
Revised Original Revised Original Revised Original Revised

0 1 0 1 0 1 0
0 996 0 990 0 983 0

ANNUAL BUDGET    
RTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment
996 990 983

   ere are NO budget revisions at the time of quarterly submittal leave the 'REVISED' Column(s) 
Y BLANK.  If budget revisions ARE made, the entire "REVISED" budget columns for the affected quarter(s) 

  pleted on tabs 2, 3 and 4.
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ANNUAL BUDGET    
RTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment
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9 10 11 12
90 90 79 74

  
  

 ACTUAL QUARTERLY
TOTAL DISTRICTS/ENROLLMENT 

QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4
Actual Actual Actual Actual

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4

Actual 
Enrollment

Actual 
Enrollment

Actual 
Enrollment

Actual 
Enrollment
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ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4

Actual 
Enrollment

Actual 
Enrollment

Actual 
Enrollment

Actual 
Enrollment
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 *NOTE:   Enter the number of FTE positions 
in the "blue" cells.

ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL FTE PRIOR YEAR   
2018-19 Q1
ACTUAL Original Revised

Executive Management 3.0 3.0

Instructional Management 4.0 5.0
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 26.0 22.0

CFO / Director of Finance 1.0 1.0
Operation / Business Manager 13.0 13.0

Administrative Staff 10.0 8.0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 57.0 52.0 0.0

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL FTE PRIOR YEAR   
2018-19 Q1
ACTUAL Original Revised

Teachers - Regular 61.0 64.0
Teachers - SPED 23.0 24.0
Substitute Teachers
Teaching Assistants 9.0 8.0
Specialty Teachers 10.0 13.0
Aides
Therapists & Counselors 5.0 5.0
Other 4.0 4.0
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 112.0 118.0 0.0

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL FTE PRIOR YEAR   
2018-19 Q1
ACTUAL Original Revised

Nurse 0.0 0.0
Librarian 0.0 0.0
Custodian 0.0 0.0
Security 0.0 0.0
Other 0.0 0.0
TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 0.0 0.0 0.0

*NOTE:   If there are NO budget re             
If budget revisions ARE made, the                 
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TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE FTE 169.0 170.0 0.0
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 *NOTE:   Enter the number of FTE positions 
in the "blue" cells.

ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL FTE

Executive Management

Instructional Management
Deans, Directors & Coordinators

CFO / Director of Finance
Operation / Business Manager

Administrative Staff

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL FTE

Teachers - Regular
Teachers - SPED
Substitute Teachers
Teaching Assistants
Specialty Teachers
Aides
Therapists & Counselors
Other
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL FTE

Nurse
Librarian
Custodian
Security
Other
TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL

CONEY ISLAND PREPA    

STAFFING PLAN -    

ANNUAL BUDGETED FTE
Q2 Q

Original Revised Original
3.0 3.0

5.0 5.0
22.0 22.0

1.0 1.0
13.0 13.0

9.0 10.0

53.0 0.0 54.0

ANNUAL BUDGETED FTE
Q2 Q

Original Revised Original
64.0 64.0
24.0 24.0

8.0 8.0
13.0 13.0

5.0 5.0
4.0 4.0

118.0 0.0 118.0

ANNUAL BUDGETED FTE
Q2 Q

Original Revised Original
0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0 0.0

       evisions at the time of quarterly submittal leave the 'RE    
      entire "REVISED" budget columns for the affected quar          
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TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE FTE 171.0 0.0 172.0
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 *NOTE:   Enter the number of FTE positions 
in the "blue" cells.

ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL FTE

Executive Management

Instructional Management
Deans, Directors & Coordinators

CFO / Director of Finance
Operation / Business Manager

Administrative Staff

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL FTE

Teachers - Regular
Teachers - SPED
Substitute Teachers
Teaching Assistants
Specialty Teachers
Aides
Therapists & Counselors
Other
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL FTE

Nurse
Librarian
Custodian
Security
Other
TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL

  ARATORY PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL
2019-20

   FULL TIME EQUIVALENT ("FTE")

    
Q3 Q4

Revised Original Revised
3.0

5.0
22.0

1.0
13.0

10.0

0.0 54.0 0.0

    
Q3 Q4

Revised Original Revised
64.0
24.0

8.0
13.0

5.0
4.0

0.0 118.0 0.0

    
Q3 Q4

Revised Original Revised
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0

                VISED' Column(s) COMPLETELY BLANK.
             rter(s) must be completed on tabs 2, 3 and 4.
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TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE FTE 0.0 172.0 0.0
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 *NOTE:   Enter the number of FTE positions 
in the "blue" cells.

ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL FTE

Executive Management

Instructional Management
Deans, Directors & Coordinators

CFO / Director of Finance
Operation / Business Manager

Administrative Staff

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL FTE

Teachers - Regular
Teachers - SPED
Substitute Teachers
Teaching Assistants
Specialty Teachers
Aides
Therapists & Counselors
Other
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL FTE

Nurse
Librarian
Custodian
Security
Other
TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL

     

      

ACTUAL QUARTERLY FTE
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Actual Actual Actual Actual

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

ACTUAL QUARTERLY FTE
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Actual Actual Actual Actual

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

ACTUAL QUARTERLY FTE
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Actual Actual Actual Actual

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

*NOTE:  Each quarter, the actual FTE should be input.
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TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE FTE 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
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 *NOTE:   Enter the number of FTE positions 
in the "blue" cells.

ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL FTE

Executive Management

Instructional Management
Deans, Directors & Coordinators

CFO / Director of Finance
Operation / Business Manager

Administrative Staff

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL FTE

Teachers - Regular
Teachers - SPED
Substitute Teachers
Teaching Assistants
Specialty Teachers
Aides
Therapists & Counselors
Other
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL FTE

Nurse
Librarian
Custodian
Security
Other
TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL

     

      

*NOTE:   State the assumptions that are being 
made for personnel FTE levels.

Description of Assumptions

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Schools Officer, 
Executive Director (consulting - transitional)
Chief Academic Officer, Principals
Deans of Instruction, Deans of Students;, Chief 
People Officer; Directors of SpEd, Curriculum & STEM

Chief Financial Officer
Chief Operatiing Officer; Director of Operatons, 
Operations Managers and Coordinators at each 
School
Addtl Central Office functions: Data, Recruiting, HR, 
Finance, Family Engagement, Special Projects, 
Facilities

Description of Assumptions

Lead (elementry), Math, Science, ELA & History

Apprenitice teachers
Art, drama, music, gym, CS

Social workers
College readiness & counseling

Description of Assumptions
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TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE FTE
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150         
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Weighted Avg )                      - 

          16,150 

Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per 
Pupil Funding)

     
   

-                                            - 
-                                            - 
-                      -                      
-                                            - 

 Revised 
Budget  Variance 

25.0%
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 

                      -                       - 

                      - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      - 
                      -                       - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

  Quarter - 7/1 - 9/30 

*NOTE:  If there ar                
If budget revisions AR                    
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

Grants
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation
Other

Other 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

     
   

-                                            - 
-                                            - 
-                      -                      
-                                            - 

 Revised 
Budget  Variance 

  Quarter - 7/1 - 9/30 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      -                       - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      -                       - 

                      -                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 171.25         

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

     
   

-                                            - 
-                                            - 
-                      -                      
-                                            - 

 Revised 
Budget  Variance 

  Quarter - 7/1 - 9/30 

                      - 
                      - 

                      -                       - 

                      -                       - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      -                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY

     
   

-                                            - 
-                                            - 
-                      -                      
-                                            - 

 Revised 
Budget  Variance 

  Quarter - 7/1 - 9/30 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      -                       - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      -                       - 

                      - 
                      - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

DEFERRED RENT

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

     
   

-                                            - 
-                                            - 
-                      -                      
-                                            - 

 Revised 
Budget  Variance 

  Quarter - 7/1 - 9/30 

                      - 

                      -                       - 

                      -                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

Grants
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation
Other

Other 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

  ATORY PUBLIC CHARTER      
 / Operating Plan
2019-20

                      - 5,210,705     
                      - 5,228,330     

-                      (17,625)         
                      - 990                

 Variance 
 Original 
Budget 

      12/31  3rd Q      

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      -          196,743 

                      -            35,935 
                      - 
                      -            35,536 
                      - 
                      -            25,000 
                      - 
                      -            19,730 
                      - 
                      -          116,200 

                      -       5,210,705 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 171.25         

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

  ATORY PUBLIC CHARTER      
 / Operating Plan
2019-20

                      - 5,210,705     
                      - 5,228,330     

-                      (17,625)         
                      - 990                

 Variance 
 Original 
Budget 

      12/31  3rd Q      

                      -          419,115 
                      -            97,659 
                      -          816,670 

                      -       4,198,323 

                      -                       - 
                      -               3,000 
                      - 
                      - 
                      -            66,131 
                      -               3,911 
                      - 
                      - 
                      -          107,022 
                      -          180,064 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY

  ATORY PUBLIC CHARTER      
 / Operating Plan
2019-20

                      - 5,210,705     
                      - 5,228,330     

-                      (17,625)         
                      - 990                

 Variance 
 Original 
Budget 

      12/31  3rd Q      

                      -               1,563 
                      -            19,212 
                      -               8,636 
                      -            63,480 
                      -               9,800 
                      -            12,945 
                      -               6,075 
                      -            53,227 
                      -            21,996 
                      -            32,113 
                      -                       - 
                      -            37,057 
                      -            25,575 
                      -            83,575 
                      -            42,656 
                      -            18,375 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      -            16,227 
                      -          452,509 

                      -            23,173 
                      -            76,058 
                      -          175,324 
                      -            15,572 
                      - 
                      - 
                      -            18,389 
                      -          308,516 

                      -            88,919 
                      - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

DEFERRED RENT

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

  ATORY PUBLIC CHARTER      
 / Operating Plan
2019-20

                      - 5,210,705     
                      - 5,228,330     

-                      (17,625)         
                      - 990                

 Variance 
 Original 
Budget 

      12/31  3rd Q      

                      - 

                      -       5,228,330 

                      -           (17,625)
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150         
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Weighted Avg )                      - 

          16,150 

Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per 
Pupil Funding)

     SCHOOL      
   

-                                            - 
-                                            - 
-                      -                      
-                                            - 

 Revised 
Budget  Variance 

25.0%
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 

                      -                       - 

                      - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      - 
                      -                       - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

  Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 

              ve the 'REVISED' Column(s) CO  
            ed quarter(s) must be complete       
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

Grants
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation
Other

Other 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

     SCHOOL      
   

-                                            - 
-                                            - 
-                      -                      
-                                            - 

 Revised 
Budget  Variance 

  Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      -                       - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      -                       - 

                      -                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 171.25         

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

     SCHOOL      
   

-                                            - 
-                                            - 
-                      -                      
-                                            - 

 Revised 
Budget  Variance 

  Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 

                      - 
                      - 

                      -                       - 

                      -                       - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      -                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY

     SCHOOL      
   

-                                            - 
-                                            - 
-                      -                      
-                                            - 

 Revised 
Budget  Variance 

  Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      -                       - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      -                       - 

                      - 
                      - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

DEFERRED RENT

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

     SCHOOL      
   

-                                            - 
-                                            - 
-                      -                      
-                                            - 

 Revised 
Budget  Variance 

  Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 

                      - 

                      -                       - 

                      -                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150         
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Weighted Avg )                      - 

          16,150 

Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per 
Pupil Funding)

          
   

                      - 
                      - 

-                      
                      - 

 Variance 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      - 

                      - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      - 
                      - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

      6/30 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

Grants
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation
Other

Other 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

          
   

                      - 
                      - 

-                      
                      - 

 Variance 

      6/30 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 171.25         

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

          
   

                      - 
                      - 

-                      
                      - 

 Variance 

      6/30 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY

          
   

                      - 
                      - 

-                      
                      - 

 Variance 

      6/30 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 
                      - 

                      - 
                      - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

DEFERRED RENT

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

          
   

                      - 
                      - 

-                      
                      - 

 Variance 

      6/30 

                      - 

                      - 

                      - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150         
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
- -                    
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Weighted Avg )                      - 

          16,150 

Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per 
Pupil Funding)

CONEY ISLAND PREPAR    

                      - 107,792        
                      - (317,068)       

-                      (209,276)       

 Variance 

 Original 
Budget vs. PY 

Budget 

                      -          686,876 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 

                      -          686,876 

                      -            14,139 

                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -         (254,165)
                      -            18,527 
                      -                       - 
                      -          465,377 

                      -            46,526 
                      -           (32,509)
                      -           (89,809)
                      -         (212,291)

t / Operating Plan

 VARI
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

Grants
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation
Other

Other 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

CONEY ISLAND PREPAR    

                      - 107,792        
                      - (317,068)       

-                      (209,276)       

 Variance 

 Original 
Budget vs. PY 

Budget 

t / Operating Plan

 VARI

                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -         (288,083)

                      -           (92,343)
                      -                       - 
                      -           (15,015)
                      -                       - 
                      -            37,500 
                      -                       - 
                      -                  356 
                      -                       - 
                      -           (69,502)

                      -          107,792 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 171.25         

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

CONEY ISLAND PREPAR    

                      - 107,792        
                      - (317,068)       

-                      (209,276)       

 Variance 

 Original 
Budget vs. PY 

Budget 

t / Operating Plan

 VARI

                      -         (726,006)
                      -            18,975 
                      -         (354,696)

                      -         (476,326)

                      -                     (1)
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -          252,804 
                      -             (3,171)
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -            20,507 
                      -          270,139 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY

CONEY ISLAND PREPAR    

                      - 107,792        
                      - (317,068)       

-                      (209,276)       

 Variance 

 Original 
Budget vs. PY 

Budget 

t / Operating Plan

 VARI

                      -                       - 
                      -            20,262 
                      -            10,566 
                      -           (22,728)
                      -            28,929 
                      -             (8,540)
                      -                  694 
                      -           (31,201)
                      -                     (1)
                      -           (22,977)
                      -                       - 
                      -               9,620 
                      -             (4,780)
                      -             (5,004)
                      -             (5,416)
                      -            18,250 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -         (129,817)
                      -         (142,143)

                      -               3,940 
                      -           (89,735)
                      -           (21,074)
                      -                  461 
                      -                       - 
                      -                       - 
                      -             (6,654)
                      -         (113,062)

                      -          144,324 
                      -                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

DEFERRED RENT

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

CONEY ISLAND PREPAR    

                      - 107,792        
                      - (317,068)       

-                      (209,276)       

 Variance 

 Original 
Budget vs. PY 

Budget 

t / Operating Plan

 VARI

                      -                       - 

                      -        (317,068)

                      -        (209,276)
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BALANCE SHEET

Prior Year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2018-19 As of 9/30 As of 12/31 As of 3/31 As of 6/30

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents              8,000,180                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Grants and contracts receivable                    50,726                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Accounts receivables                      1,500                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Prepaid Expenses                 135,542                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Contributions and other receivables                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS              8,187,948                              -                              -                              -                              - 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net              3,057,383                              -                              -                              -                              - 

OTHER ASSETS                 258,660                              -                              -                              -                              - 

TOTAL ASSETS 11,503,991          -                             -                             -                             -                             

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses                 406,003                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Accrued payroll and benefits                    66,730                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Deferred Revenue              1,575,420                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Current maturities of long-term debt                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Other                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES              2,048,153                              -                              -                              -                              - 

LONG-TERM DEBT and NOTES PAYABLE, net current maturities                 199,799                              -                              -                              -                              - 

TOTAL LIABILITIES              2,247,952                              -                              -                              -                              - 

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted              8,361,225                              -                              -                              -                              - 
Temporarily restricted                 894,815                              -                              -                              -                              - 

TOTAL NET ASSETS              9,256,040                              -                              -                              -                              - 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS            11,503,991                              -                              -                              -                              - 

CONEY ISLAND PREPARATORY PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL

2019-20

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS
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Total Revenue -                      
Total Expenses -                      
Net Income -                      
Actual Student Enrollment -                      

 Actual 

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150                        - 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES                        - 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

1st Q     
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Total Revenue -                      
Total Expenses -                      
Net Income -                      
Actual Student Enrollment -                      

 Actual 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

1st Q     

     
   

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES                        - 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES                        - 

TOTAL REVENUE                        - 
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Total Revenue -                      
Total Expenses -                      
Net Income -                      
Actual Student Enrollment -                      

 Actual 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

1st Q     

     
   

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              -                      

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              -                      

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              -                      

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                -                        - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS                        - 
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Total Revenue -                      
Total Expenses -                      
Net Income -                      
Actual Student Enrollment -                      

 Actual 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

1st Q     

     
   

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES                        - 
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Total Revenue -                      
Total Expenses -                      
Net Income -                      
Actual Student Enrollment -                      

 Actual 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

1st Q     

     
   

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS                        - 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE                        - 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT
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Total Revenue -                      
Total Expenses -                      
Net Income -                      
Actual Student Enrollment -                      

 Actual 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

1st Q     

     
   

TOTAL EXPENSES                        - 

NET INCOME                        - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

5,263,193      
5,143,988      

119,205         
1,003             

 Current 
Budget 

      4,049,613 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
      4,049,613 
          741,614 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
          159,024 
                       - 
      4,950,250 

            53,127 
            84,596 
            15,094 
            43,926 

                       - 

 Quarter - 7/1 - 9
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

5,263,193      
5,143,988      

119,205         
1,003             

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 7/1 - 9

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
          196,743 

            35,935 
                       - 
            35,536 
                       - 
            25,000 
                       - 
            19,730 
                       - 
          116,200 

      5,263,193 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

5,263,193      
5,143,988      

119,205         
1,003             

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 7/1 - 9

     
   

          157,563 
          166,861 
          536,969 
            36,275 
          262,186 
          160,025 

1,319,877      

      1,150,070 
          388,538 
                       - 
            90,000 
          235,069 
                       - 
            91,392 
            75,458 

2,030,526      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

      3,350,403 

          299,896 
          419,115 
            97,659 
          816,670 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

5,263,193      
5,143,988      

119,205         
1,003             

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 7/1 - 9

     
   

                       - 
              3,000 
                       - 
                       - 
            66,131 
              3,911 
                       - 
                       - 
          107,022 
          180,064 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

5,263,193      
5,143,988      

119,205         
1,003             

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 7/1 - 9

     
   

              1,563 
            19,212 
              8,636 
            63,480 
              9,800 
            12,945 
              6,075 
            53,227 
              4,399 
            32,113 
            11,316 
            37,057 
            25,575 
            83,575 
            14,219 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
            16,227 
          399,417 

            23,173 
            76,058 
          175,324 
            15,572 
                       - 
                       - 
            18,389 
          308,516 

            88,919 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

5,263,193      
5,143,988      

119,205         
1,003             

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 7/1 - 9

     
   

      5,143,988 

          119,205 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

5,263,193      
5,143,988      

119,205         
1,003             

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 7/1 - 9

     
   

              1,003 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

1,003             

5,247             

5,129             
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 

     9/30
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     9/30

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     9/30

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     9/30

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     9/30

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     9/30

     
   

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     9/30

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

-                      

-                      
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

                       - 

                       - 

2nd Q     

CON      
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

2nd Q     

CON      
   

                       - 

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

2nd Q     

CON      
   

-                      

-                      

-                      

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

2nd Q     

CON      
   

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

2nd Q     

CON      
   

                       - 

                       - 

Page 133 of 269[Entry 6  Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget] 31530225-cip-suny-budget-and-quarterly-report-fy19-20.xlsx



Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

2nd Q     

CON      
   

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

2nd Q     

CON      
   

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

-                      

-                      
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

5,234,930      
5,224,947      

9,984             
996                 

 Current 
Budget 

      4,021,350 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
      4,021,350 
          741,614 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
          159,024 
                       - 
      4,921,988 

            53,127 
            84,596 
            15,094 
            43,926 

                       - 

 Quarter - 10/1 - 

NEY ISLAND P    
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

5,234,930      
5,224,947      

9,984             
996                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 10/1 - 

NEY ISLAND P    
   

                       - 
                       - 
          196,743 

            35,935 
                       - 
            35,536 
                       - 
            25,000 
                       - 
            19,730 
                       - 
          116,200 

      5,234,930 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

5,234,930      
5,224,947      

9,984             
996                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 10/1 - 

NEY ISLAND P    
   

          157,563 
          166,861 
          536,969 
            36,275 
          262,186 
          179,169 

1,339,021      

      1,150,070 
          388,538 
                       - 
            90,000 
          235,069 
                       - 
            91,392 
            75,458 

2,030,526      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

      3,369,547 

          299,896 
          419,115 
            97,659 
          816,670 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

5,234,930      
5,224,947      

9,984             
996                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 10/1 - 

NEY ISLAND P    
   

            40,100 
              3,000 
                       - 
                       - 
            66,131 
              3,911 
                       - 
                       - 
          107,022 
          220,164 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

5,234,930      
5,224,947      

9,984             
996                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 10/1 - 

NEY ISLAND P    
   

              1,563 
            19,212 
              8,636 
            63,480 
              9,800 
            12,945 
              6,075 
            53,227 
              4,399 
            32,113 
                       - 
            37,057 
            25,575 
            83,575 
            42,656 
              4,594 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
            16,227 
          421,132 

            23,173 
            76,058 
          175,324 
            15,572 
                       - 
                       - 
            18,389 
          308,516 

            88,919 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

5,234,930      
5,224,947      

9,984             
996                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 10/1 - 

NEY ISLAND P    
   

      5,224,947 

              9,984 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

5,234,930      
5,224,947      

9,984             
996                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 10/1 - 

NEY ISLAND P    
   

                  996 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

996                 

5,256             

5,246             
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 

     12/31

  PREPARATOR    
Budget / Op  

2019
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     12/31

  PREPARATOR    
Budget / Op  

2019

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     12/31

  PREPARATOR    
Budget / Op  

2019

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     12/31

  PREPARATOR    
Budget / Op  

2019

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     12/31

  PREPARATOR    
Budget / Op  

2019

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     12/31

  PREPARATOR    
Budget / Op  

2019

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     12/31

  PREPARATOR    
Budget / Op  

2019

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

-                      

-                      
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

                       - 

                       - 

3rd Q     

  RY PUBLIC CH  
  erating Plan

9-20

Page 150 of 269[Entry 6  Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget] 31530225-cip-suny-budget-and-quarterly-report-fy19-20.xlsx



Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

3rd Q     

  RY PUBLIC CH  
  erating Plan

9-20

                       - 

                       - 

                       - 

Page 151 of 269[Entry 6  Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget] 31530225-cip-suny-budget-and-quarterly-report-fy19-20.xlsx



Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

3rd Q     

  RY PUBLIC CH  
  erating Plan

9-20

-                      

-                      

-                      

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

3rd Q     

  RY PUBLIC CH  
  erating Plan

9-20

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

3rd Q     

  RY PUBLIC CH  
  erating Plan

9-20

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

3rd Q     

  RY PUBLIC CH  
  erating Plan

9-20

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

3rd Q     

  RY PUBLIC CH  
  erating Plan

9-20

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

-                      

-                      
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

5,210,705      
5,228,330      

(17,625)          
990                 

 Current 
Budget 

      3,997,125 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
      3,997,125 
          741,614 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
          159,024 
                       - 
      4,897,763 

            53,127 
            84,596 
            15,094 
            43,926 

                       - 

 Quarter - 1/1 - 

    HARTER SCHO
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

5,210,705      
5,228,330      

(17,625)          
990                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 1/1 - 

    HARTER SCHO
   

                       - 
                       - 
          196,743 

            35,935 
                       - 
            35,536 
                       - 
            25,000 
                       - 
            19,730 
                       - 
          116,200 

      5,210,705 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

5,210,705      
5,228,330      

(17,625)          
990                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 1/1 - 

    HARTER SCHO
   

          157,563 
          166,861 
          536,969 
            36,275 
          262,186 
          191,275 

1,351,127      

      1,150,070 
          388,538 
                       - 
            90,000 
          235,069 
                       - 
            91,392 
            75,458 

2,030,526      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

      3,381,653 

          299,896 
          419,115 
            97,659 
          816,670 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

5,210,705      
5,228,330      

(17,625)          
990                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 1/1 - 

    HARTER SCHO
   

                       - 
              3,000 
                       - 
                       - 
            66,131 
              3,911 
                       - 
                       - 
          107,022 
          180,064 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

5,210,705      
5,228,330      

(17,625)          
990                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 1/1 - 

    HARTER SCHO
   

              1,563 
            19,212 
              8,636 
            63,480 
              9,800 
            12,945 
              6,075 
            53,227 
            21,996 
            32,113 
                       - 
            37,057 
            25,575 
            83,575 
            42,656 
            18,375 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
            16,227 
          452,509 

            23,173 
            76,058 
          175,324 
            15,572 
                       - 
                       - 
            18,389 
          308,516 

            88,919 
                       - 
                       - 

Page 161 of 269[Entry 6  Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget] 31530225-cip-suny-budget-and-quarterly-report-fy19-20.xlsx



Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

5,210,705      
5,228,330      

(17,625)          
990                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 1/1 - 

    HARTER SCHO
   

      5,228,330 

          (17,625)
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

5,210,705      
5,228,330      

(17,625)          
990                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 1/1 - 

    HARTER SCHO
   

                  990 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

990                 

5,263             

5,281             
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 

     3/31

     OOL
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     3/31

     OOL
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     3/31

     OOL
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     3/31

     OOL
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     3/31

     OOL
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     3/31

     OOL
   

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

                       - 
                       - 

-                      
-                      

 Variance 

     3/31

     OOL
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

-                      

-                      
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

                       - 

                       - 

4th Q     
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

4th Q     

     
   

                       - 

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

4th Q     

     
   

-                      

-                      

-                      

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

4th Q     

     
   

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

4th Q     

     
   

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

4th Q     

     
   

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual 

4th Q     

     
   

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

-                      

-                      
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

5,374,086      
5,371,062      

3,024             
983                 

 Current 
Budget 

      3,968,863 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
      3,968,863 
          741,614 

                       - 
                       - 
          191,643 
          159,024 
                       - 
      5,061,143 

            53,127 
            84,596 
            15,094 
            43,926 

                       - 

 Quarter - 4/1 - 6
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

5,374,086      
5,371,062      

3,024             
983                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 4/1 - 6

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
          196,743 

            35,935 
                       - 
            35,536 
                       - 
            25,000 
                       - 
            19,730 
                       - 
          116,200 

      5,374,086 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

5,374,086      
5,371,062      

3,024             
983                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 4/1 - 6

     
   

          157,563 
          166,861 
          536,969 
            36,275 
          262,186 
          191,275 

1,351,127      

      1,150,070 
          388,538 
                       - 
            90,000 
          235,069 
                       - 
            91,392 
            75,458 

2,030,526      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

      3,381,653 

          299,896 
          419,115 
            97,659 
          816,670 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

5,374,086      
5,371,062      

3,024             
983                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 4/1 - 6

     
   

                       - 
              3,000 
                       - 
                       - 
            66,131 
              3,911 
                       - 
                       - 
          107,022 
          180,064 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

5,374,086      
5,371,062      

3,024             
983                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 4/1 - 6

     
   

              1,563 
            19,212 
              8,636 
            63,480 
              9,800 
            12,945 
              6,075 
            53,227 
              4,399 
          160,563 
                       - 
            37,057 
            25,575 
            83,575 
            14,219 
            13,781 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
            81,136 
          595,241 

            23,173 
            76,058 
          175,324 
            15,572 
                       - 
                       - 
            18,389 
          308,516 

            88,919 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

5,374,086      
5,371,062      

3,024             
983                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 4/1 - 6

     
   

      5,371,062 

              3,024 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

5,374,086      
5,371,062      

3,024             
983                 

 Current 
Budget 

 Quarter - 4/1 - 6

     
   

                  983 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

983                 

5,467             

5,464             

Page 184 of 269[Entry 6  Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget] 31530225-cip-suny-budget-and-quarterly-report-fy19-20.xlsx































Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Current 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Current 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

   

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Current 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

   

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Current 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

   

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Current 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

   

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Current 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

   

     
   

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Current 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

   

     
   

  Data Based on L    
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

-                      

-                      
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                     
vs.                       

Current 
Budget 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                     
vs.                       

Current 
Budget 

   

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                     
vs.                       

Current 
Budget 

   

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                     
vs.                       

Current 
Budget 

   

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                     
vs.                       

Current 
Budget 

   

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

Page 210 of 269[Entry 6  Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget] 31530225-cip-suny-budget-and-quarterly-report-fy19-20.xlsx



Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                     
vs.                       

Current 
Budget 

   

     
   

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                     
vs.                       

Current 
Budget 

   

     
   

     Last Actual Qua  
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

-                      

-                      
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Current 
Budget - TY 

    16,036,950 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
    16,036,950 
      2,966,456 

                       - 
                       - 
          191,643 
          636,094 
                       - 
    19,831,143 

          212,507 
          338,384 
            60,375 
          175,704 

                       - 

   

CONEY     
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Current 
Budget - TY 

   

CONEY     
   

                       - 
                       - 
          786,970 

          143,738 
                       - 
          142,142 
                       - 
          100,000 
                       - 
            78,921 
                       - 
          464,801 

    21,082,914 

Page 214 of 269[Entry 6  Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget] 31530225-cip-suny-budget-and-quarterly-report-fy19-20.xlsx



Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Current 
Budget - TY 

   

CONEY     
   

          630,250 
          667,442 
      2,147,874 
          145,100 
      1,048,742 
          721,744 

5,361,152      

      4,600,281 
      1,554,152 
                       - 
          360,000 
          940,275 
                       - 
          365,566 
          301,831 

8,122,105      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

    13,483,257 

      1,199,584 
      1,676,458 
          390,636 
      3,266,678 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Current 
Budget - TY 

   

CONEY     
   

            40,100 
            12,000 
                       - 
                       - 
          264,522 
            15,645 
                       - 
                       - 
          428,087 
          760,354 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Current 
Budget - TY 

   

CONEY     
   

              6,250 
            76,849 
            34,543 
          253,921 
            39,198 
            51,780 
            24,300 
          212,908 
            35,193 
          256,900 
            11,316 
          148,226 
          102,299 
          334,300 
          113,748 
            36,750 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
          129,817 
      1,868,298 

            92,693 
          304,232 
          701,297 
            62,287 
                       - 
                       - 
            73,554 
      1,234,063 

          355,676 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Current 
Budget - TY 

   

CONEY     
   

    20,968,326 

          114,588 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Current 
Budget - TY 

   

CONEY     
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual          
vs.              

Current 
Budget TY 

   (16,036,950)
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
   (16,036,950)
     (2,966,456)

                       - 
                       - 
        (191,643)
        (636,094)
                       - 
   (19,831,143)

        (212,507)
        (338,384)
          (60,375)
        (175,704)

                       - 

TOTAL    

 ISLAND PRE    
Bud    
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual          
vs.              

Current 
Budget TY 

TOTAL    

 ISLAND PRE    
Bud    

                       - 
                       - 
        (786,970)

        (143,738)
                       - 
        (142,142)
                       - 
        (100,000)
                       - 
          (78,921)
                       - 
        (464,801)

  (21,082,914)
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual          
vs.              

Current 
Budget TY 

TOTAL    

 ISLAND PRE    
Bud    

          630,250 
          667,442 
      2,147,874 
          145,100 
      1,048,742 
          721,744 

5,361,152      

      4,600,281 
      1,554,152 
                       - 
          360,000 
          940,275 
                       - 
          365,566 
          301,831 

8,122,105      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

    13,483,257 

      1,199,584 
      1,676,458 
          390,636 
      3,266,678 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual          
vs.              

Current 
Budget TY 

TOTAL    

 ISLAND PRE    
Bud    

            40,100 
            12,000 
                       - 
                       - 
          264,522 
            15,645 
                       - 
                       - 
          428,087 
          760,354 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual          
vs.              

Current 
Budget TY 

TOTAL    

 ISLAND PRE    
Bud    

              6,250 
            76,849 
            34,543 
          253,921 
            39,198 
            51,780 
            24,300 
          212,908 
            35,193 
          256,900 
            11,316 
          148,226 
          102,299 
          334,300 
          113,748 
            36,750 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
          129,817 
      1,868,298 

            92,693 
          304,232 
          701,297 
            62,287 
                       - 
                       - 
            73,554 
      1,234,063 

          355,676 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual          
vs.              

Current 
Budget TY 

TOTAL    

 ISLAND PRE    
Bud    

    20,968,326 

        (114,588)
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual          
vs.              

Current 
Budget TY 

TOTAL    

 ISLAND PRE    
Bud    
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Original 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 

LS AND VARIAN  

  PARATORY P   
dget / Opera  

2019-20
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Original 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

LS AND VARIAN  

  PARATORY P   
dget / Opera  

2019-20

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Original 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

LS AND VARIAN  

  PARATORY P   
dget / Opera  

2019-20

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Original 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

LS AND VARIAN  

  PARATORY P   
dget / Opera  

2019-20

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Original 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

LS AND VARIAN  

  PARATORY P   
dget / Opera  

2019-20

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Original 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

LS AND VARIAN  

  PARATORY P   
dget / Opera  

2019-20

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Original 
Budget   

(Current 
Quarter) 

LS AND VARIAN  

  PARATORY P   
dget / Opera  

2019-20

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

-                      

-                      
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                  
vs.               

Original 
Budget 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 

  CE ANALYSIS

   PUBLIC CHAR  
  ting Plan

0
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                  
vs.               

Original 
Budget 

  CE ANALYSIS

   PUBLIC CHAR  
  ting Plan

0

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                  
vs.               

Original 
Budget 

  CE ANALYSIS

   PUBLIC CHAR  
  ting Plan

0

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                  
vs.               

Original 
Budget 

  CE ANALYSIS

   PUBLIC CHAR  
  ting Plan

0

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                  
vs.               

Original 
Budget 

  CE ANALYSIS

   PUBLIC CHAR  
  ting Plan

0

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                  
vs.               

Original 
Budget 

  CE ANALYSIS

   PUBLIC CHAR  
  ting Plan

0

                       - 

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

-                      
-                      
-                      
-                      

 Actual                  
vs.               

Original 
Budget 

  CE ANALYSIS

   PUBLIC CHAR  
  ting Plan

0

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

-                      

-                      
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Original 
Budget - TY 

    16,036,950 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
    16,036,950 
      2,966,456 

                       - 
                       - 
          191,643 
          636,094 
                       - 
    19,831,143 

          212,507 
          338,384 
            60,375 
          175,704 

                       - 

   

    TER SCHOOL
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Original 
Budget - TY 

   

    TER SCHOOL
   

                       - 
                       - 
          786,970 

          143,738 
                       - 
          142,142 
                       - 
          100,000 
                       - 
            78,921 
                       - 
          464,801 

    21,082,914 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Original 
Budget - TY 

   

    TER SCHOOL
   

          630,250 
          667,442 
      2,147,874 
          145,100 
      1,048,742 
          721,744 

5,361,152      

      4,600,281 
      1,554,152 
                       - 
          360,000 
          940,275 
                       - 
          365,566 
          301,831 

8,122,105      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

    13,483,257 

      1,199,584 
      1,676,458 
          390,636 
      3,266,678 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Original 
Budget - TY 

   

    TER SCHOOL
   

            40,100 
            12,000 
                       - 
                       - 
          264,522 
            15,645 
                       - 
                       - 
          428,087 
          760,354 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Original 
Budget - TY 

   

    TER SCHOOL
   

              6,250 
            76,849 
            34,543 
          253,921 
            39,198 
            51,780 
            24,300 
          212,908 
            35,193 
          256,900 
            11,316 
          148,226 
          102,299 
          334,300 
          113,748 
            36,750 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
          129,817 
      1,868,298 

            92,693 
          304,232 
          701,297 
            62,287 
                       - 
                       - 
            73,554 
      1,234,063 

          355,676 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Original 
Budget - TY 

   

    TER SCHOOL
   

    20,968,326 

          114,588 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

21,082,914   
20,968,326   

114,588         

 Original 
Budget - TY 

   

    TER SCHOOL
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual              
vs.            

Original 
Budget TY 

   (16,036,950)
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
   (16,036,950)
     (2,966,456)

                       - 
                       - 
        (191,643)
        (636,094)
                       - 
   (19,831,143)

        (212,507)
        (338,384)
          (60,375)
        (175,704)

                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual              
vs.            

Original 
Budget TY 

   

     
   

                       - 
                       - 
        (786,970)

        (143,738)
                       - 
        (142,142)
                       - 
        (100,000)
                       - 
          (78,921)
                       - 
        (464,801)

  (21,082,914)
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual              
vs.            

Original 
Budget TY 

   

     
   

          630,250 
          667,442 
      2,147,874 
          145,100 
      1,048,742 
          721,744 

5,361,152      

      4,600,281 
      1,554,152 
                       - 
          360,000 
          940,275 
                       - 
          365,566 
          301,831 

8,122,105      

                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 

-                      

    13,483,257 

      1,199,584 
      1,676,458 
          390,636 
      3,266,678 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual              
vs.            

Original 
Budget TY 

   

     
   

            40,100 
            12,000 
                       - 
                       - 
          264,522 
            15,645 
                       - 
                       - 
          428,087 
          760,354 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual              
vs.            

Original 
Budget TY 

   

     
   

              6,250 
            76,849 
            34,543 
          253,921 
            39,198 
            51,780 
            24,300 
          212,908 
            35,193 
          256,900 
            11,316 
          148,226 
          102,299 
          334,300 
          113,748 
            36,750 
                       - 
                       - 
                       - 
          129,817 
      1,868,298 

            92,693 
          304,232 
          701,297 
            62,287 
                       - 
                       - 
            73,554 
      1,234,063 

          355,676 
                       - 
                       - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual              
vs.            

Original 
Budget TY 

   

     
   

    20,968,326 

        (114,588)
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

(21,082,914)  
20,968,326   

(114,588)        

 Actual              
vs.            

Original 
Budget TY 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150                   
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
- -                              
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )                                - 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding)                     16,150 
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development)
Other

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Other

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

-                                  
-                                  
-                                  
-                                  

 PY Actual (PY TY / 
No. of COMPLETED 
Actual CY Quarters) 

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 

                                   - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

Other
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations
Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Earnings on Investments
Interest Income
Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE 

-                                  
-                                  
-                                  
-                                  

 PY Actual (PY TY / 
No. of COMPLETED 
Actual CY Quarters) 

   

     
   

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 

                                   - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

EXPENSES  Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                              
Instructional Management -                              
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                              
CFO / Director of Finance -                              
Operation / Business Manager -                              
Administrative Staff -                              

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF -                              

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular -                              
Teachers - SPED -                              
Substitute Teachers -                              
Teaching Assistants -                              
Specialty Teachers -                              
Aides -                              
Therapists & Counselors -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                              
Librarian -                              
Custodian -                              
Security -                              
Other -                              

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL -                              

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits
Retirement / Pension

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                                - 

-                                  
-                                  
-                                  
-                                  

 PY Actual (PY TY / 
No. of COMPLETED 
Actual CY Quarters) 

   

     
   

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 

-                                  

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 

-                                  

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 

-                                  

                                   - 

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 
Legal
Management Company Fee
Nurse Services
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

-                                  
-                                  
-                                  
-                                  

 PY Actual (PY TY / 
No. of COMPLETED 
Actual CY Quarters) 

   

     
   

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks
Supplies & Materials other
Equipment / Furniture
Telephone 
Technology
Student Testing & Assessment
Field Trips
Transportation (student)
Student Services - other
Office Expense
Staff Development
Staff Recruitment
Student Recruitment / Marketing
School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff)
Fundraising
Other

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance
Janitorial
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture
Security
Utilities

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY
DEFERRED RENT

-                                  
-                                  
-                                  
-                                  

 PY Actual (PY TY / 
No. of COMPLETED 
Actual CY Quarters) 

   

     
   

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

-                                  
-                                  
-                                  
-                                  

 PY Actual (PY TY / 
No. of COMPLETED 
Actual CY Quarters) 

   

     
   

                                   - 

                                   - 
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enrollment

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Analysis' Section 
is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 )

TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

-                                  
-                                  
-                                  
-                                  

 PY Actual (PY TY / 
No. of COMPLETED 
Actual CY Quarters) 

   

     
   

                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 
                                   - 

-                                  

-                                  

-                                  
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Entry	8	BOT	Table
Created:	07/15/2019	•	Last	updated:	07/30/2019

1.	 SUNY AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	are	required	to	provide	information	for	VOTING	Trustees	only.		
2.	 REGENTS,	NYCDOE,	and	BUFFALO	BOE AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	are	required	to	provide

information	for	all	 VOTING	and	NON VOTING 	trustees.

1.	Current	Board	Member	Information	(Enter	info	for	each	BOT	member)

Trustee
Name
and
Email
Address

Position
on	the
Board

Committ
ee
Affiliation
s

Voting
Member
Per	By
Laws
(Y/N)

Number
of	Terms
Served

Start
Date	of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

End	Date
of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

Board
Meetings
Attended
During
2018 19

1

Josh
Wolfe;

Chair

Fundraisi
ng;
Governan
ce;
Facilities

Yes 3 07/01/20
19

06/30/20
22 9

2

Anu
Malipati;

Secretary
Academic
Accounta
bility

Yes 1 07/01/20
17

06/30/20
20 5	or	less

3

Jennifer
McArdle; Trustee/M

ember
Governan
ce;
Facilities

Yes 2 07/01/20
17

06/30/20
20 9

4

Joe
Herrera; Trustee/M

ember
Students
and	Staff Yes 1 06/01/20

18
05/31/20
21 9

5

Shona
Pinnock; Trustee/M

ember
Students
and	Staff Yes 1 06/30/20

18
07/01/20
21 9

6

Julie
Goran; Trustee/M

ember Facilities Yes 1 04/30/20
18

05/01/20
22 5	or	less



2	/	3

1a.	Are	there	more	than	9
members	of	the	Board	of
Trustees?

No

3.	Number	of	Board	meetings
held	during	2018-19

12

7

Nkonye
Okoh;

Treasurer Finance;
Facilities Yes 1 11/30/20

18
12/1/202
1 8

8

Samanth
a
Tweedy; Trustee/M

ember

Fundraisi
ng,
Academic
Accounta
bility

Yes 1 02/28/20
19

03/01/20
22 5	or	less

9

Joseph
Talia; Trustee/M

ember Finance Yes 1 07/01/20
17

06/30/20
20 5	or	less

2.	INFORMATION	ABOUT	MEMBERS	OF	THE	BOARD	OF	TRUSTEES

1.	 SUNY-AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	provide	response	relative	to	VOTING	Trustees	only.		
2.	 REGENTS,	NYCDOE,	and	BUFFALO	BOE-AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	provide	a	response

relative	to	all	trustees.	

a.	Total	Number	of	BOT	Members	on
June	30,	2019 9

b.Total	Number	of	Members	Added
During	2018 19 3

c.	Total	Number	of	Members	who
Departed	during	2018 19 0

d.Total	Number	of	members	in	2018 19,
as	set	by	in	Bylaws,	Resolution	or
Minutes

9
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4.	Number	of	Board	meetings
scheduled	for	2019-20

12

Thank	you.
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Entry	10	Enrollment	and	Retention	of	Special
Populations
Created:	07/24/2019	•	Last	updated:	07/27/2019

Instructions	for	Reporting	Enrollment	and	Retention	Strategies
Describe	the	efforts	the	charter	school	has	made	in	2018 19	toward	meeting	targets	to	attract	and	retain
enrollment	of	students	with	disabilities,	English	language	learners/Multilingual	learners,	and	students	who
are	economically	disadvantaged.	In	addition,	describe	the	school’s	plans	for	meeting	or	making	progress
toward	meeting	its	enrollment	and	retention	targets	in	2019 20.

CONEY	ISLAND	PREPARATORY	PUBLIC	CHARTER	SCHOOLSection	Heading

Recruitment/Attraction	Efforts	Toward	Meeting	Targets

Describe	Recruitment	Efforts	in	2018 19 Describe	Recruitment	Plans	in	2019 20

Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

With	regards	to	economically	disadvantaged
students,	the	vast	majority	of	our	students
over	80% fall	into	this	category.	We	are	able
to	recruit	such	a	large	percentage	of
economically	disadvantaged	students	based
on	where	we	target	our	student	recruitment
efforts,	which	are	largely	focused	on	the
Coney	Island	community.	These	recruitment
efforts	include	multiple	mailings	to	every
grade eligible	family	in	Community	School
District	21	and	immediately	adjacent
neighborhoods,	family	information	sessions,
and	advertisements.	Coney	Island	is	one	of
the	more	underserved	communities	in	New
York	City,	and	so	focusing	our	recruitment
efforts	in	that	neighborhood	ensures	that	we
exceed	our	enrollment	targets	for	FRPL
students.

In	order	to	meet	the	2019 20	Recruitment
Targets,	we	will	continue	to	employ	the
strategies	that	have	led	to	success	in	the
past.	We	will	continue	to	focus	our
Recruitment	efforts	on	the	Coney	Island
community.	We	will	send	mailings,	hold
information	sessions,	conduct	outreach	to
local	Community	Based	Organizations,	and
increase	visibility	with	public	transportation
advertisements.

Our	past	efforts	to	recruit	English	Language
Learners	have	not	historically	led	us	to	meet
our	enrollment	target	for	ELLs.	Last	year,	in
response,	we	asked	our	charter	authorizer	to
allow	us	to	amend	our	charter	to	include	a
preference	for	ELLs.	The	amendment	was
approved,	and	so	this	year’s	lottery	included
a	preference	for	ELLs.	ELLs	receive	4	times
the	entries	of	any	other	entry	in	whichever
lottery	category	they	fall	into	(siblings,
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English
Langua
ge
Learner
s/Multili
ngual
Learner
s

CSD21,	or	non CSD21.)
We	also	continue	to	improve	our	outreach
efforts	to	Limited	English	Proficient	(LEP)
families.	We	expanded	the	distribution	of	our
student	recruitment	materials	to	include
English,	Spanish,	and	Russian,	with	contact
information	in	Mandarin	Chinese	and	offer
interpretation	services	to	prospective
families.	Bilingual	staff	members	are	present
at	information	sessions.	We	reach	out	to
families	of	English	Language	Learners	at
preschools	and	through	current	Coney	Island
Prep	families.	In	addition,	we	have	improved
our	use	of	interpreters	to	communicate	with
families	who	speak	other	languages.	For	the
first	time,	we	conducted	an	information
session	for	families	in	Spanish.
While	the	enrollment	data	for	our	incoming
kindergarten	and	5th	graders	will	not	be
finalized	until	the	fall,	all	indications	point
towards	a	higher	percentage	of	ELL	students.
We	expect	that	with	our	expanded	outreach
and	with	the	ELL	preference,	we	will	continue
to	enroll	a	higher	percentage	of	ELL
students,	which	will	result	in	our	meeting	or
exceeding	our	recruitment	target.

We	are	pleased	with	the	forecasted	increase
in	our	ELL	population	this	school	year,	due
the	implementation	of	new,	ELL targeted
recruitment	strategies,	including	the	ELL
lottery	preference,	the	increased	availability
of	recruitment	materials	and	advertisements
in	various	languages,	interpretation	services,
Spanish	information	sessions,	and	outreach
through	current	families	and	local	preschools.
These	strategies	will	continue	to	ensure
equitable	outreach,	and	the	meeting	of
recruitment	targets	during	the	2019 20
school	year.

Student
s	with
Disabilit
ies

We	have	always	enrolled	a	higher
percentage	of	students	classified	as	special
education	students	than	Community	School
District	21,	the	district	in	which	our	school
resides.
With	regards	to	students	with	disabilities,	we
have	always	served	a	very	high	percentage
of	special	education	students	since	our
founding	year.	In	fact,	we	consistently	have
amongst	the	highest	percentage	of	students
with	disabilities	amongst	all	charter	schools
in	New	York	City.	In	addition,	we	have	always
served	a	higher	percentage	of	students	with
disabilities	than	both	district	schools	that	we
share	space	with,	including	IS303	and	IS281.
We	believe	we	have	been	able	to	recruit	and
retain	such	a	high	percentage	of	students
with	special	needs	for	two	reasons.	First,	in
all	of	the	school’s	recruitment	materials	and
information	sessions	to	prospective	families,
we	indicate	that	we	enroll	all	students,
including	students	classified	as	having
special	needs.	Second,	we	have	dedicated	a
lot	of	time,	effort,	energy,	and	resources	to
our	special	education	program,	and	a	make	a
point	of	doing	everything	we	can	to	serve

As	we	are	currently	exceeding	our	target	for
economically	disadvantaged	students	and
students	with	disabilities,	and	have	since	our
founding	year,	we	will	continue	to	employ
the	strategies	that	have	contributed	towards
the	meeting	of	recruitment	goals.	We	will
continue	to	highlight	services	for	Students
with	Disabilities	in	our	recruitment	materials
and	information	sessions,	emphasizing	that
Coney	Island	Prep’s	strong	academic
program	has	proven	particularly	effective	for
students	with	special	needs.	Our	extended
day	and	structured	school	environment
allows	Coney	Island	Prep	to	maximize
learning	time	and	offer	students	targeted
supports.
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students	with	special	needs	at	a	very	high
level.
At	every	one	of	our	information	sessions,	a
Coney	Island	Prep	parent	who	has	a	child
with	special	needs	is	on	hand	to	speak	about
the	school’s	program	and	answer	any
questions	families	might	have.

Retention	Efforts	Toward	Meeting	Targets

Describe	Retention	Efforts	in	2018 19 Describe	Retention	Plans	in	2019 20

Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

In	2017	 	2018,	we	had	770	students
classified	as	economically	disadvantaged
that	were	eligible	to	return	for	the	2018	
2019	school year.	710	of	those	students,	or
92.2%	returned	for	the	2018	 	2019	school
year.
This	exceeded	our	retention	targets.	Our
strong	academic	program,	high	expectations,
extended	day	and	structured	school
environment	allows	Coney	Island	Prep	to
maximize	learning	time,	and	offer	students
targeted	supports,	in	order	to	ensure	that	all
students	can	succeed	regardless	of
demographics.

For	the	2019 20	school	year,	we	will	continue
to	strengthen	the	core	components	of	our
school	model	that	lead	to	retention	of
Economically	Disadvantaged	students
including	strong	and	innovative	academic
practices,	high	expectations	for	all	students
that	drive	achievement,	a	longer	school	day
and	year	that	allow	for	more	time	for
targeted	support,	and	a	structured	school
and	classroom	environment.

English
Langua
ge
Learner
s/Multili
ngual
Learner
s

In	2017	 	2018,	we	had	50	students
classified	as	English	Language	Learners.	49
of	those	students,	or	98%	returned	for	the
2018	 	2019	school year.	This	exceeded	our
retention	targets.
Our	extended	day	and	structured	school
environment	allows	for	more	time	for
targeted	academic	support	for	ELL	students.
Families	of	current	ELL	students	have	been
thrilled	with	the	results	of	our	academic
supports,	as	many	ELL	students	have	tested
proficient	on	the	NYSESLAT.	In	addition,	we
have	ensured	the	availability	of	interpreters
for	family teacher	conferences	so	that
families	can	communicate	effectively	with
teachers	about	their	scholars'	progress.

We	will	continue	to	ensure	equity	by
providing	adequate	interpretation	and
translation	services,	adequate	assessment
and	accommodations	for	ELL	needs,	and
targeted	academic	supports	for	ELL	students.
Ultimately,	academic	success	and	tailored
communication	have	served	as	the	key
levers	that	lead	to	the	retention	of	English
Language	Learners.

In	2017	 	2018,	we	had	239	students
classified	as	Students	with	Disabilities	that
were	eligible	to	return	for	the	2018	 	2019
school year.	216	of	those	students,	or
89.96%
returned	for	the	2018	 	2019	school year.
This	exceeded	our	retention	targets.
Coney	Island	Prep’s	academic	program	is
very	strong,	and	has	proven	particularly
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Student
s	with
Disabilit
ies

effective	for	students	with	special	needs.	Our
extended	day	and	structured	school
environment	allows	Coney	Island	Prep	to
maximize	learning	time,	and	offer	targeted
supports	for	Students	with	Disabilities.
In	fact,	we	consistently	have	amongst	the
highest	percentage	of	students	with
disabilities	amongst	all	charter	schools	in
New	York	City.	We	have	always	served	a
higher	percentage	of	students	with
disabilities	than	both	district	school	that	we
share	space	with,	including	IS303	and	IS281.
We	believe	we	have	been	able	to	retain	such
a	high	percentage	of	students	with	special
needs	since	all	recruitment	materials	and
information	sessions	indicate	that	we	enroll
all	students,	including	students	classified	as
having	special	needs.	At	each	of	our
information	sessions,	a	Coney	Island	Prep
parent	who	has	a	child	with	special	needs	is
available	to	speak	about	the	school’s
program	and	answer	any	questions	families
might	have.

In	order	to	meet	retention	targets	for	the
2019 20	school	year,	we	will	continue	to
provide	strong,	targeted	academic	support
for	Students	with	Disabilities.	With	the
addition	of	a	Director	of	Special	Education,
we	are	able	to	employ	a	higher	level	of
strategy	and	support	in	service	of	Students
with	Special	Needs	at	Coney	Island	Prep	and
their	teachers.
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Entry	11	Classroom	Teacher	and	Administrator
Attrition
Last	updated:	07/30/2019

Report	changes	in	teacher	and	administrator	staffing.

Instructions	for	completing	the	Classroom	Teacher	and	Administrator	Attrition	Tables
Charter	schools	must	complete	the	tables	titled	2018-2019	Classroom	Teacher	and
Administrator	Attrition	to	report	changes	in	teacher	and	administrator	staffing
during	the	2018-2019	school	year.	Please	provide	the	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	of
staff	on	June	30,	2018;	the	FTE	for	any	departed	staff	from	July	1,	2018	through	June
30,	2019;	the	FTE	for	added	staff	from	July	1,	2018	through	June	30,	2019;	and	the
FTE	of	staff	added	in	newly	created	positions	from	July	1,	2018	through	June	30,	2019
using	the	tables	provided.

1.	Classroom	Teacher	Attrition	Table

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	on
6/30/18

FTE	Classroom
Teachers
Departed	7/1/18
	6/30/19

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	Filling
Vacant	Positions
7/1/18	 	6/30/19

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	Added
in	New	Positions
7/1/18	 	6/30/19

FTE	of
Classroom
Teachers	on
6/3019

92 27 24 0 91

2.	Administrator	Position	Attrition	Table

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
6/30/18

FTE
Administrators
Departed	7/1/18
	6/30/19

FTE
Administrators
Filling	Vacant
Positions	7/1/18
	6/30/19

FTE
Administrators
Added	in	New
Positions	7/1/18
	6/30/19

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
6/30/19

26 10 3 2 28



2	/	2

3.	Tell	your	school's	story

Charter	schools	may	provide	additional	information	in	this	section	of	the	Annual
Report	about	their	respective	teacher	and	administrator	attrition	rates	as	some
teacher	or	administrator	departures	do	not	reflect	advancement	or	movement	within
the	charter	school	networks.	Schools	may	provide	additional	detail	to	reflect	a
teacher’s	advancement	up	the	ladder	to	a	leadership	position	within	the	network	or
an	administrator’s	movement	to	lead	a	new	network	charter	school.
	

As	Coney	Island	Prep	transitioned	from	the	2017 2018	to	the	2018 2019	school	year,	we	were	able	to
internally	promote	a	number	of	teachers	and	administrators,	indicating	upward	advancement	rather	than
attrition.	For	teachers,	four	staff	members	who	occupied	Apprentice	Teaching	roles	in	the	2017 2018
school	year	advanced	in	to	lead	teacher	positions	in	the	2018 2019	school	year.	For	administrators,	five
staff	members	who	occupied	non administrative	roles	in	the	2017 2018	school	year	advanced	in	to
administrator	roles	in	the	2018 2019	school	year.

4.	Charter	schools	must	ensure	that	all	prospective	employees	receive	clearance
through	the	NYSED	Office	of	School	Personnel	Review	and	Accountability	(OSPRA)
prior	to	employment.	After	an	employee	has	been	cleared,	schools	are	required	to
maintain	proof	of	such	clearance	in	the	file	of	each	employee.	For	the	safety	of	all
students,	charter	schools	must	take	immediate	steps	to	terminate	the	employment	of
individuals	who	have	been	denied	clearance.	Once	the	employees	have	been
terminated,	the	school	must	terminate	the	request	for	clearance	in	the	TEACH
system.		
	
Have	all	employees	have	been	cleared	through	the	NYSED	TEACH	system?
	

Yes

5.	For	perspective	or	current	employees	whose	clearance	has	been	denied,	have	you
terminated	their	employment	and	removed	them	from	the	TEACH	system?

Not	Applicable

Thank	you






